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To Our Sharehoders2

am pleased to report that 2008 was an important transitional and positive year
for UPG Ft was also

year
of challenges particularly in the

second half Nevertheless we continued to advance our strategic plans positioning UPG for growth in 2009 and beyond Through new product

launches strategic alliances and acquisitions we continue to penetrate new markets increase our product offerings and offer our retail and

strategic partners broader portfolio of batteries and power accessories In executing this strategy we have also positioned UPG to expand

its service offerings and add new distribution channels

2008 Review

The principal challenges we faced in 2008 included significant commodity price volatility and the global economic crisis In the first half of

the year commodity price rose significantly which affected our financial results even as we continued working closely with suppliers and

customers to control costs and pricing In the second half of the
year raw material prices began to decline but we faced global financial

crisis that affected trade consumer spending the financial markets and the availability of credit to businesses and consumers

Despite the difficult environment we posted solid financial results for the year Total revenues for the year ended December 2008 increased

8.6
percent to $117.9 million from $108.5 million in 2007 Revenues from our core battery and power accessory products increased 21.0

percent to $64.8 million while revenues from Brinks Home Security and its authorized dealers fell 3.3 percent to $53 million Net earnings

for the year were $1.2 million or $0.25 per diluted share compared to $2.2 million or $0.44 per diluted share for 2007

We finished the year with total asset base of nearly $55.7 million and working capital of $20.7 million Cash flow from operations as well

as the unused portion of our $30 million line of credit provides us with operational and strategic flexibility We believe that our strong

financial position in period of economic uncertainty is competitive advantage as we manage our business and look at potential growth

opportunities going forward

From strategic standpoint we continued to move forward with our growth initiatives In the third
quarter

of 2008 we announced an acquisition

that extends our reach into the hunting and outdoor products market through our new Monarch Hunting line In November 2008 we renewed

our third party logistics services agreement with Brinks Home Security for an additional two-year
base period The agreement also provides for

successive
one-year

renewal terms thus extending our relationship with Brinks and its authorized dealers

In the fourth quarter of 2008 we entered into license agreement with Energizer Holdings Inc to develop and market new line of

consumer products for the automotive market under the Energizer brand The four-year agreement which includes an automatic two-year

renewal provides us with exclusive rights to develop market and sell Energizer-branded automotive battery chargers maintainers and

automotive jump-starters It also gives us the non-exclusive rights to create market and sell Energizer-branded power inverters to our

customers This is significant long-term opportunity to combine our expertise with trusted and recognized household brand

2009 Outlook

We remain cautiously optimistic for 2009 The depth and breadth of the recession has affected almost every sector of the global economy
and the eventual recovery is likely to be slow In addition our Chief Financial Officer resigned in December 2008 and our Chief Executive

Officer resigned in January 2009 On the other hand our core business remains strong and we are moving forward with the execution of

our growth strategy



During the management transition assumed the positions of Interim President and

CEO of UPG until June of 2009 when our board appointed me as permanent

President and CEO Though management transitions are never easy it is important to

remember our executive staff remains intact and we have sales marketing and

operational team in place that is fully prepared to grow the business In addition our

board of directors remains confident in the capabilities of our current executive

management team

My priorities as President and CEO will be on efficiency improvements and lean

initiatives while carefully managing UPG in the face of difficult business environment

While see opportunity for growth also recognize my responsibility to shareholders

that we must also remain disciplined in using our resources and maintaining our focus

on cultivating future business

Our basic strategy remains focused on developing higher-margin products and

markets as well as on diversification in terms of markets and product and service

offerings to minimize exposure to any one segment of the economy In addition

we are committed to customer service and enhancing customer satisfaction

Another priority is the strengthening of our relationships with our manufacturing

base in China In March 2009 we terminated our relationship with Import

Consultants for the sourcing of batteries and related power accessories from

factories in China Although the termination of this relationship resulted in

substantial costs we believe it will provide even greater long-term benefits as we
enhance the value of our supply chain and reduce operating costs By working

directly with our manufacturing partners instead of through brokers we anticipate

being able to increase productivity and efficiency in our supply chain while working

to better meet the needs of our customers

With our strong balance sheet and line of credit sufficient for our growth needs

we are in good position to grow market share In the near term we will continue

to develop our new relationship with Energizer so that it can reach its full potential

We intend to expand our market penetration into the hunting and outdoor markets

with our Monarch Hunting line as well as the motorcycle and adventure sports

market with our new Adventure Power line launched in early 2009 Our

relationship with Brinks Home Security and its authorized dealers remains strong

and continues to provide us access to third-party logistics business opportunities

am personally excited with the challenge of new responsibilities as President and

CEO am also convinced that we are taking the right steps for the long-term

growth of UPG and am looking forward to making continued and significant

contributions to UPGs future success

We are grateful for the support of our shareholders employees customers

and suppliers understand that our commitment to performance is the

source of this continued support and our entire management team is

dedicated to delivering on that commitment in 2009 and beyond

Sincerely

Ian Edmonds

President CEO
UPG

Lotus power you



vcrsal PG is global distributor of batteries

and power accessories and supply chain management company

specializing in third
party ogistics and value-added services

Strategically headquartered in CarrolltonTexas north of the Dallas Metroplex

we have additional logistics centers in Oklahoma Georgia and Nevada

PIODUCI

At UPG we offer batteries of
every chemistry that cater to the growing demand

for reliable back-up and portable power for our increasingly mobile universe

We also stock one of the largest inventories of maintenance-free sealed

lead-acid batteries in the nation

Our products are used in many applications and markets including

automotive consumer goods hunting marine medical mobility motorcycle

power sports security solar and telecommunications Product lines
range

from our own proprietary brands of industrial and consumer batteries

chargers jump-starters 12-volt accessories transformers and security

products such as alarm panels sirens and more

Energizet UCENSLE

In December 2008 we entered into

four
year licensing agreement with

Energizer to develop an Energizer

branded line of automotive battery

chargers and maintainers jump starters

and inverters



SUPPLY CF AN 1HRD PARTY

OilST CS SERV CS

As provider of specialized full service supply chain third party logistics

services we tailor solutions that provide for optimum supply chain efficiencies

Our clients find that by leaving the complexties of their supply chain to us and

refocusing on their core business initiatives they are able to effectively improve

customer satisfaction

With over quarter
million

square
feet of combined state-of-theart distribution

space and years
of

proven
distribution experience our supply chain solutions range

from business-tobusiness/EDl capabilities to procurement inventory

management carrier selection rate negotiation reverse logistics kitting and

order fulfiflment

We pride ourselves in being extremely adaptive and responsive to the changing needs

of our customers From concept to deliverc our solution based approach provides

for dynamic offering
that is unparalled in the marketplace

Our commitment to quality and service has earned

us strong client base of well respected corporations

including Bnnks Home Security Protecton One

Monitronics RadioShack HD Supply Cabelas

Pride Mobility Costco Gander Mountain Dollar

General to name few

IIIIBRNKS
HOME SECURITY

ontroncs

RadoShack

.cu SUPPLY
rity The SCOOTER Store

Pricie cOSTCO GANDERMTNWESALE
MobihlyPoducts Cop



With over 30
years

in the battery pack assembly business and as one of the

very first Authorized Panasonic Modification centers in the country we have

the proven expertise to build packs of various chemistries As an

ISO 9000200 certified company our customers can be assured of the

integrity of our quality processes

We have the capabilities to provide engineering design expertise as well as

support both low and high volume projects inhouse at our Texas facility or

in China through our vendor relationships Our battery pack projects have

included packs for IV pumps radar guns cordless phones twoway radios

vending machines parking meters door locks and security panels

At UPG we do not only assemble kits but we make the entire process

more efficient Our team of experts is trained to pick assemble and ship

according to specific client needs.We offer customlabeling bundling

shrinkwrapping and repackaging solutions as required Our goal is to

help our clients better manage inventory levels and plan assembly delivery

and purchasing activities

We provide original equipment manufacturers component procurement

and product reconfiguration solutions according to their specifications

Depending on client requirements we can coordinate for direct shipments

from our factories or from any one of our logistics centers

We offer private branding as valueadded solution for our customers

who want to improve brand
visibility Our private label products include

batteries chargers 2V accessories security products solar products

and more
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report includes forward-looking statements as the term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995 or by the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission in its rules regulations and releases

regarding among other things all statements other than statements of historical facts contained in this report

including statements regarding our future financial position business strategy and plans and objectives of

management for future operations The words believe may estimate continue anticipate intend
should plan could target potential is likely will expect and similarexpressions as they

relate to us are intended to identify forward-looking statements We have based these forward-looking

statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends that we

believe may affect our financial condition results of operations business strategy and financial needs These

forward-looking statements are subject to number of risks uncertainties and assumptions described in Risk

Factors and elsewhere in this report In addition our past results of operations do not necessarily indicate our

future results

Other sections of this report may include additional factors which could adversely affect our business and

financial performance Moreover the third-party logistics services business and the battery and related power

accessory supply and distribution business are highly competitive and rapidly changing New risk factors emerge

from time to time and it is not possible for us to anticipate all the relevant risks to our business and we cannot

assess the impact of all such risks on our business or the extent to which any risk or combination of risks may
cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements Those factors

include among others those matters disclosed as Risk Factors in Item 1A contained in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Except as otherwise required by applicable laws and regulations we undertake no obligation to publicly

update or revise any forward-looking statements or the risk factors described in this report whether as result of

new information future events changed circumstances or any other reason after the date of this report Neither

the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 nor Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 provides any

protection to us for statements made in this report You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as

predictions of future events or performance We cannot assure you that the events and circumstances reflected in

the forward-looking statements will be achieved or occur Although we believe that the expectations reflected in

the forward-looking statements are reasonable we cannot guarantee future results levels of activity performance

or achievements

PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Corporate History

We were organized in July 1968 under the laws of Texas Our principal executive office is located at 1720

Hayden Drive Carrollton Texas 75006 and our telephone number is 469 892-1122 Our web address is

www.upgi.com We have three inactive wholly-owned subsidiaries two of which are incorporated in Texas and

one of which is incorporated in Nevada Until December 20 2006 we operated as wholly-owned consolidated

subsidiary of Zunicom Inc Zunicom Texas corporation whose stock is traded on the OTC Bulletin Board

under the symbol ZNCM.OB On December 212006 we sold 2000000 shares of our common stock in an

underwritten initial public offering IPO In addition in the offering Zunicom sold 1000000 shares of our

common stock that it owned As result Zunicoms ownership interest in us was reduced to 40%
Notwithstanding the fact that Zunicom no longer owns controlling interest in us it still has significant

influence

Available Information

Our website address is www.uvei.com We are not including the information contained on our website as part

of or incorporating it by reference into this annual report on Form 10-K We make available free of charge through

our website our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form lO-Q current reports on Form 8-K and all



amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or

furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC

You may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100

Street N.E Washington D.C 20549 You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference

Room by calling the SEC at l-800-SEC-0330 The SEC maintains website that contains reports proxy and

information statements and other information regarding issuers such as us that file electronically with the SEC
The website address is www.sec.gov

Business Overview

We are leading supplier and distributor of batteries and related power accessories and ii third-party

logistics services provider specializing in supply chain management and value-added services

Distribution Business

We sell distribute and market batteries and related power accessories under various manufacturer brands

private labels and our own proprietary brands We are one of the leading domestic distributors of sealed or

maintenance-free lead-acid batteries SLA batteries Our principal product lines include

batteries of wide variety of chemistries battery chargers and related accessories

portable battery-powered products such as jump starters and 12-volt DC power accessories

security system components such as alarm panels perimeter access controls horns sirens speakers

transformers cable and wire

Our customers include original equipment manufacturers OEMs distributors and both online and

traditional retailers The products we source sell distribute and market are used in diverse and growing range
of industries including automotive medical mobility medical consumer goods electronics marine hunting

security and surveillance telecommunications uninterruptible power supply UPS power sports solar and

portable power

The demand for batteries and related power accessories is impacted by consumer preferences technological

developments fuel costs which impact both manufacturing and shipping the cost of lead and copper the two

principal raw materials used to manufacture batteries and general economic conditions We believe that

technological change drives growth as new product introductions accelerate sales and provide us with new
opportunities Our products represent basic

energy
solutions to wide variety of existing applications in broad

market spectrum At the same time battery chemistries are also evolving due to changes in consumer demands

and preferences that are driven in part by environmental and safety concerns and the need for greater density

power and longer life Therefore we continue to stay current regarding advances and changes in battery

technology

Third Party Logistics

We are also third-party logistics services provider specializing in supply chain management and value-

added services Our supply chain management services include inventory sourcing procurement warehousing
and fulfillment Our value-added services include custom battery pack assembly custom kittirig private-

labeling product development and engineering graphic design and sales and marketing Our third-party logistics

services are designed to help customers optimize performance by allowing them to outsource supply chain

management functions

We believe that the demand for third-party logistics and supply chain management solutions is growing

particularly with globalization To be successful businesses have to not only excel in their core competencies
but they must also execute their supply chain processes quickly and accurately To remain competitive

businesses strive to identify ways to more efficiently manage their supply chain and streamline their logistics



processes by minimizing inventory levels reducing order and cash-to-cash cycle lengths and outsourcing

manufacturing and assembly operations to low-cost locations An efficient supply chain has become critical

element to improving financial performance As result businesses are increasingly turning to organizations that

provide broad array of logistics and supply chain solutions These trends have been further facilitated by the

rapid growth of technology enabling seamless electronic interfaces between systems of service providers and

their customers

Industry Background

The battery and related power accessory industry is one of the largest and growing multi-billion dollar

industries in the United States Batteries serve as an energy storage
solution for wide range of consumer and

commercial products including cell phones PDAs motorcycles lawnmowers medical scooters boats solar

panels and security systems We believe that the growth in consumer and industrial demand for battery power

will continue to be trend for the future as technological advances and globalization set the stage for more

productive mobile and portable society

The supply chain and third party logistics industry is another large and growing market as OEMs contract

manufacturers and businesses large and small choose to outsource their procurement inventory and materials

management processes to third parties in order to improve operational efficiencies and excel in competitive

environment Many large distribution companies not only fill these procurement and materials management roles

but also further serve as single supply source for OEMs and contract manufacturers and retailers offering

much broader line of products rapid or scheduled deliveries and incremental quality control measures

We believe that the third-party logistics industry will continue to grow because of the following factors

Outsourcing non-core activities Businesses are increasingly relying on third-party logistics providers

for non-core activities such as sourcing and procurement warehousing assembling kitting shipping

and distribution so as to focus on their core competencies

Globalization of trade As barriers to international trade are reduced or eliminated businesses are

increasingly sourcing their parts supplies and raw materials from the most competitive suppliers

throughout the world Businesses often find themselves getting involved in logistical matters with

which they are unfamiliar and often are faced with unforeseen added overhead and other logistic costs

which take away from their competitive edge and bottom-line income We believe with continued

globalization businesses will increasingly turn to and rely on third-party logistics providers for their

sourcing warehousing inventory management and distribution needs

Increased competition Increasing competition means businesses have to operate more efficiently

Businesses benefit by using third party logistics providers who already have established infrastructures

sourcing relationships and greater efficiencies

Increased reliance on technology Advances in technology are placing premium on decreased

transaction time and increased business-to-business activity Businesses recognize the benefits of being

able to transact commerce electronically

Our Products and Services

The principle products we handle as distributor are as follows

Batteries We are one of the leading domestic distributors of SLA absorbent glass mat and gel

batteries all of which have been designated as non-hazardous by the U.S Department of Transportation

We maintain broad inventory of UPG-branded and private-label SLA batteries that we sell to retailers

and distributors for consumer and industrial applications and to OEMs Our SLA batteries cater to

wide range of markets including automotive motorcycle jet-ski snowmobile security marine medical

mobility hunting and solar We continue to provide new battery sizes for varying applications to meet

customer and market needs



We also stock and distribute broad range of UPG-branded and private-label batteries of most

chemistries including nickel-cadmium lithium lithium polymer nickel metal hydride alkaline and

carbon-zinc batteries which are used primarily in consumer electronic products

Our proprietary brands include the names Universal Battery Universal and Adventure Power We

currently private label our products for many large customers including HD Supply RadioShack Bass

Pro Cabelas and others

We offer value-added custom battery pack assembly services and are also one of the nations first

authorized Panasonic modification centers that builds custom-designed battery packs comprised of

Panasonic batteries for customers

Power accessories such as battery chargers jump-starters 12-volt power accessories and solar

panels To complement our battery offerings we have an expanding line of power inverters battery

chargers and maintainers for various applications such as automotive marine hunting motorcycles and

medical scooters We also offer tailored charging solutions for specialized applications

Our line of jump-starters branded StarterUpTM are portable sources of 12-volt DC power used

primarily as emergency starting power sources on failed automobile and marine batteries These jump-

starters may be used to power many accessories including cell phones laptops and radios Our jump-

starters are sold to various retailers including RadioShack Bass Pro and Cabelas

Recently we entered into an agreement with Eveready Battery Company/Energizer under which we

have the exclusive right to develop market and sell Energizer-branded automotive battery chargers and

maintainers and automotive jump-starters and the non-exclusive right to develop market and sell

Energizer-branded power inverters

We also have break-away kits for trailers and our own expanding 12-volt DC accessory line which

includes electric auto jacks impact wrenches handheld vacuums cordless air compressors

warmers/coolers spotlights electric mugs and others that plug into cigarette lighter sockets or any 12-

volt DC power source

Our renewable power products now include solar panels chargers and kits for use in multiple

applications including outdoor recreational activities such as hunting

Security products We carry broad line of residential and commercial security products including

alarm panels perimeter access controls transformers sirens horns wire and cable and other related

products

We continue to actively review research and develop new and innovative products to add to our broad

spectrum of product offerings

Our logistics services include

Inventory sourcing and procurement Due to our long-standing and strategic relationships with

manufacturers in Asia we can effectively source products for our customers and at the same time help

lower their costs We see this as competitive advantage that will help us further secure and enhance

customer relationships Depending on customer needs we can arrange to have the manufacturer ship

directly to them or alternatively we can stock inventory for customer in our warehouse according to

their inventory needs and deliver as required In some situations based on customer qualification we

purchase and take ownership of the inventory on the customers behalf Traditional logistics and

fulfillment providers merely warehouse and distribute products leaving inventory ownership to the

customer We believe our ability to offer flexible and tailored solutions to our customers gives us

competitive advantage



Warehousing and distribution Our primary distribution center is located in Carroilton Texas suburb

of Dallas This prime location allows easy access to national and international markets and enables us to

facilitate efficient quick delivery and fulfillment of products nationwide We also have regional

logistics centers in Oklahoma City Oklahoma Columbus Georgia and Las Vegas Nevada which

provide additional distribution points to support additional and varying customer needs

Engineering design assistance custom assembly and kitting We offer engineering design assistance

services for specialized applications As an example we have the ability to develop custom battery

packs for applications such as cordless phones door locks medical equipment surveillance tools and

toys We have the expertise to cater for small businesses and OEMs Battery packs are assembled to

order in nearly all instances

We also custom kit products and components as required by customers For instance as value-added

service we can pick and repackage products and components into shippable units We provide this

service to number of our customers notably Brinks Home Security and its authorized dealers

Graphic design and marketing We offer branding packaging design and marketing services to assist

customers in bringing their product from development to packaged product In some instances we help

promote and sell the finished product through our sales and marketing team and distribution network

Recycling As an additional value-added service to our customers and in ensuring that we contribute to

environmental conservation we help coordinate pick up of all their used or spent SLA batteries with

EPA authorized haulers to deliver to EPA authorized smelters for recycling

Growth Strategy

Our objective is to become global supplier and distributor of batteries and related power accessories and

leading provider of third-party logistics services Our long-term growth strategy includes the following

Expand our logistics service offerings We are dedicating more resources to market our logistic and

supply chain capabilities We believe that one of the most efficient ways to attract new customers and

expand relationships with existing customers is to expand our logistics service We continue to add to

our offerings and explore other value-added solutions such as freight forwarding and shipping customs

and brokerage real-time visibility electronic order entry and rapid order processing

Enhance information technology capabilities We provide customized web portal interface for our

customers that allows them to easily place orders online with access to and management of their

fulfillment needs We believe that in the coming years an increasing number of transactions in this

industry will be processed online As result we plan to further expand the functionality and utilization

of our website in such way that it will become more accessible and user-friendly

Increase our product offerings Another effective means of improving margins attracting new

customers and expanding relationships with existing customers is to increase and diversify our product

offerings We intend to offer new products that complement those already within our portfolio and

expand our product lines to include more comprehensive offering of batteries chargers inverters

jumpstarts and other power accessories In addition we plan to continue to monitor technological

advances and changes in consumer preferences expand our relationship with existing suppliers and

forge alliances with strategic partners

Increase value-added service offerings We intend to continue to enhance our service offerings

including product development engineering graphic design custom battery pack assembly and

coordination of recycling efforts Our goal is to be complete solution to our customers where they can

consolidate their processes and product needs and benefit from greater operational efficiencies



Identify new customers and new markets We intend to pursue new customers and new markets

through traditional sales and marketing activities We believe that the trend towards technological

advances and the increased demand for mobility and portability will in turn result in greater demand for

our batteries and related power accessories and open up new opportunities and markets globally In

addition to the United States we currently serve customers in Canada England Ireland and Australia

Part of our growth strategy is to further develop new accounts in Europe and Latin America and

establish distribution centers in strategic locations

Quality Controls and ISO Certification

We adhere to quality management system that ensures that our operations are performed within the

confines of increasing strictness in quality control programs and traceability procedures As result our

distribution facility has successfully completed procedure and quality audits and earned certification under the

international quality standard of ISO 90012000 This quality standard was established by the International

Standards Organization ISO created by the European Economic Community EEC The ISO created uniform

standards of measuring processes traceability procedures and quality control in order to assist and facilitate

business within the EEC This voluntary certification is testimony of our commitment to consistently provide

products that enhance customer satisfaction and the assurance of conformity to customer and applicable

regulatory requirements

Product safety is top priority and all of our products that have electrical or mechanical concerns are safety

tested and approval listed by UL CUL CSA CE TUV or other standards agencies as required by and relevant

to each customers business location These agency listings ensure that our products adhere to specific quality

and consistency standards

Customers

Our customers include OEMs contract electronics manufacturers distributors retailers and electronics

manufacturing service providers that serve broad
range

of industries including automotive marine sports and

recreation medical mobility and other medical equipment security and surveillance consumer goods and

electronics telecommunications and solar Our customer list includes over 2500 active accounts We define an

active account as any customer who has purchased goods from us within the last two years Our largest customer

is Brinks Home Security for whom we function as supply chain manager throughout the United States and

Canada Under our agreement with Brinks Home Security we purchase and distribute various components for

their security installations some of which we purchase from Brinks Home Securitys designated suppliers In

2008 Brinks Home Security accounted for approximately 35% of our net sales Brinks Home Security is our

only customer that accounted for more than 10% of our net sales In November 2008 we signed new two year

agreement with Brinks Home Security This agreement renews automatically for one additional year Brinks

Home Security has the right to terminate the agreement at any time upon 120 days prior written notice

We expect that demand for our services and consequently our results of operations will continue to be

sensitive to domestic and global economic conditions and other factors we cannot directly control As such our

focus will remain on diversifiing product lines service offerings expanding our relationship with our current

customers and adding new accounts through our field and in-house sales and marketing teams

Sources and Availability of Products

We purchase products from both domestic and foreign manufacturers In 2008 we purchased products from

over 200 suppliers During 2008 approximately 51% of our purchases were from domestic suppliers and 49%

were from foreign suppliers Approximately 50% of our 2007 purchases were from domestic suppliers and 50%

were from foreign suppliers We do not have supply agreements with any of these sources although Brinks

Home Security has written agreements with Honeywell Security and Custom Electronics HSCE which

accounted for approximately 36% of our inventory purchases in 2008 In addition even though we purchase

approximately 92% of our batteries from single source we believe that if that relationship were to terminate we

would be able to re-source those products from other suppliers fairly quickly although our costs may be higher

Other than HSCE and our major battery supplier we do not depend on any single source for products



We have significant long-term relationships with manufacturers located in Asia principally China Other

suppliers are located in Taiwan and Malaysia We manage these relationships many exceeding decade either

directly or indirectly through an independent sourcing agent We paid the independent sourcing agent

commission for goods purchased from factories that he introduced Approximately 45% of our product

purchases in 2008 were commissionable to the independent sourcing agent including purchases from our largest

overseas supplier representing approximately 38% of our total product purchases and 92% of our battery

purchases in 2008 In March 2009 in an effort to improve efficiencies within our sourcing channels we entered

into an agreement with the independent sourcing agent canceling our relationship As part of this agreement the

sourcing agent assigned to us all of his North American distribution rights on products manufactured by certain

factories including our primary battery supplier

Competition

We compete with numerous well-established companies many if not most of which are larger and have

greater capital and management resources and greater name recognition However because of our broad

platform of battery and power accessory offerings and our third party logistics expertise we believe we have

competitive advantage Our competitors include international national regional and local companies in variety

of industries

We compete primarily on the basis of price inventory availability flexibility scope of services quality of

products and services delivery time and customer relationships Our ability to remain competitive will largely

depend on our ability to continue to source products competitively and efficiently ii develop new and

alternative sources that are comparable in terms of price and quality and iiianticipate and respond to customer

demands and preferences and trends affecting the industry such as new product introductions and pricing

strategies consumer and demographic trends international national regional and local economic conditions

including those affecting prices of raw materials and shipping

Distribution

In the battery and power accessory business we compete with battery and other electronics distributors or

manufacturers such as Interstate Batteries MK Battery Powersonic and Yuasa We offer wider range of

battery chemistries and related power accessories and can be more responsive in developing niche markets and

responding to customer needs market changes and other trends

We are increasingly finding that manufacturers particularly foreign manufacturers are competing against us

marketing and selling their products directly to OEMs distributors and retailers importers brokers and

commerce companies Foreign manufacturers particularly those located in low-cost jurisdictions such as Latin

America and Asia generally have price advantage but are less knowledgeable about the domestic market and

lack the infrastructure to properly serve the market

Third Party Logistics

In the third-party logistics business we compete with traditional logistics service providers The major

companies in this industry include C.H Robinson Worldwide Inc EGL Inc Stonepath Group and UT
Worldwide Inc In general these companies provide freight transportation services but could also provide

supply chain management solutions In comparison we provide limited in-house freight transportation services

This could make us less attractive alternative to some potential customers However we do engage freight

forwarding companies to work with us on consolidating and securing price competitive freight transportation

services We also compete directly with large overnight shipping companies such as UPS FedEx and DHL who

have begun to market themselves as supply chain management service providers

We differentiate ourselves from other logistics companies in our overall knowledge experience and

understanding of customer needs and requirements coupled with our breadth of services We believe our

competitive advantages include the following



Well-established sourcing contacts We have long-standing relationships with manufacturers in Asia

principally China For example we were one of the first authorized distributors of Panasonic batteries

in the United States We bring additional value to our customers by locating lower-cost suppliers

Key customer relationships Over the last two years we have served more than 2500 customers from

sole proprietors and small businesses to many large well-known national regional and local distributors

and retailers Our customers include well known names such as Brinks Home Security RadioShack

Bass Pro Cabelas Pride Mobility The Scooter Store Protection One Monitronics HD Supply and GE

Security

Extensive inventory perm its prompt response to customer needs We stock broad range of products

according to customer and seasonal needs With extensive inventory covering 75 classes of products

and approximately 3740 SKUs we can satisfy most customer demands immediately

National distribution Our primary logistics center and warehouse facility is located in the Dallas

Texas metroplex regional logistics centers are located in Oklahoma City Oklahoma Columbus

Georgia and Las Vegas Nevada As result we can deliver products to almost any location in the

continental United States within 24 to 48 hours

Value-added services We offer additional services not commonly provided by other third-party

logistics or supply chain service providers such as sourcing custom kitting battery pack assembly

product development private labeling and coordinating customers with licensed EPA approved handlers

for their battery recycling efforts

Broad industry experience experienced management and support professionals We have been in

business for 40 years and have extensive knowledge of our markets and products We also have

dedicated and experienced management team coupled with an excellent support staff

Reputation for quality Since our inception we have built reputation based on the quality of our

products the timeliness of our deliveries and our responsiveness to customer needs We believe that our

commitment to customer satisfaction and our sourcing expertise have helped us in the industry as

premier supplier of batteries and related power accessories We have had ISO 90012000 certification

since October 2003

Marketing and Sales

We employ marketing sales and sales support to actively pursue new business opportunities and retain and

grow existing accounts We also engage outside sales representatives We use variety of techniques to market

our products including direct marketing through personal visits to customers by management sales and sales

representatives ii general advertising sales referrals and marketing support from component manufacturers

iiitelemarketing iv active participation in industry tradeshows throughout the year and our website We
have undertaken minimal advertising in trade publications though we foresee pursuing more advertising avenues

including direct mail additional trade and magazine publications and online advertising as our product offerings

and customer base determine

Customer retention and strengthening current relationships to participate in new business opportunities is

important to us and we emphasize this throughout our organization We continue to emphasize the development

of national and global accounts while aggressively targeting local accounts where we can leverage our array
of

services The larger more complex accounts typically have many requirements ranging from very detailed

standard operating and product approval procedures to customized information technology integration

requirements We believe our consistent growth cost optimization and adaptability to customer needs has

enabled us to more effectively compete for and obtain many new accounts
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Intellectual Property

We own number of trademarks trade names service marks and service names some of which are

registered These marks and names include the following Starter-UpTM UB Scootin Adventure Power
Batteries BeyondTM Charge StartTM TJNILOKTM Let Us Power Y0uTM and UPGTM We believe that these

marks are important and have helped us develop brand identity in certain markets and in connection with

certain products We also license Energizer on an exclusive and non-exclusive basis from Eveready Battery

Company

We have patent pending on battery cross-reference system and method that enables users of all levels of

knowledge to search for battery based on various search criteria including chemistry category application

product brand model manufacturer and battery model We believe that this technology will help us gain new

business at retailers and at the same time offer retailers competitive advantage and value-added service

Warranties

We offer warranties of various lengths ranging from 90 days to three years We also pass along any

applicable manufacturers warranty Our warranty is only for product defects To date we have had minimal

warranty claims

Government Regulation and Environ mental Matters

Except for usual and customary business licenses permits and regulations our business is not subject to

governmental regulations or approvals We believe that we comply with all relevant federal state and local

environmental regulations and do not expect to incur any significant costs to maintain compliance with such

regulations in the foreseeable future Failure to comply with applicable regulations or to maintain required

permits or licenses could result in substantial fines or revocation of our permits or authorities We cannot give

assurance as to the degree or cost of future regulations on our business

All of our SLA batteries are non-hazardous Class 60 batteries and therefore are not subject to laws rules and

regulations that deal with the handling of hazardous materials However we do offer to our customers as

value-added service coordination of used SLA battery recycling Our lithium batteries are designated as Class

or hazardous We work with manufacturers certified in handling and packaging these batteries

Employees

At December 31 2008 we had total of 90 full time employees of which 75 people were based in our

Texas facility were based in each of our regional logistics centers in Oklahoma Georgia and Nevada We have

senior executives 33 marketing sales and sales support personnel including the employees in our regional

logistics centers 16 information technology accounting administrative and purchasing personnel engineering

and packing personnel and 12 warehouse and shipping personnel All of our employees are full-time We do not

have collective bargaining agreements with respect to any of our employees We have not experienced any work

stoppages and consider our relations with employees to be good

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

In addition to other information in this Form 10-K the following risk factors should be carefully considered in

evaluating us and our business including our financial statements and the notes to those statements The risks and

uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face Additional risks and uncertainties not pres ently known

to us or that we currently deem immaterial could negatively impact our business results of operations or financial

condition in the future If any of thefollowing risks and uncertainties develops into actual events our business

results of operations or financial condition could be adversely affected Actual results could differ materially from

those projected in the forward- looking statements contained in this Form 10-K as result of the risk factors

discussed below and elsewhere
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Risks Relating to Our Business

significant portion of our annual revenue is derived from single customer If this customer were to

terminate its relationship with us or even reduce its level of business with us our operating results would

sufftr

For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 Brinks Home Security accounted for 35% and 41% of

our net sales respectively At December 31 2008 our Brinks Home Security receivable was $3.8 million

representing approximately 28% of our total accounts receivable as of that date none of which was outside our

terms with the customer generally 30 days We have carried as much as $13.2 million of inventory to fulfill our

obligations to Brinks Home Security Under the agreement if Brinks Home Security were to terminate our

services they would purchase all inventory in stock and in transit however there is no specified time

requirement for this buy-back provision which might cause us to incur some extended carrying costs If Brinks

Home Security were to terminate its relationship with us or significantly reduce the level of business it does with

us our revenues and profitability would be adversely impacted In addition any adverse developments in

Brinks Home Security business could have an adverse impact on our financial condition The market price of

our stock may be adversely affected because of this customer concentration

Our revolving credit agreement with Compass Bank contains restrictive covenants that could impede our

growth and our ability to compete

Our working capital requirements are significant To fund our operations we rely on cash flow from

operations and $30.0 million working capital revolving credit facility At December 31 2008 the outstanding

balance on our credit line was $14.4 million and at December 31 2007 it was $12.8 million At those dates our

total liabilities including accounts payable were $37.0 million and $32.0 million respectively The credit

facility restricts us in many ways and these restrictions as well as the amount of the debt we carry at any one time

may have an adverse impact on our business

First the indebtedness under the credit facility is secured by all of our assets including inventory and

receivables If we were to breach any of the terms of our agreement with the bank and the bank were to exercise

its right to declare default and court of competent jurisdiction were to determine that we are in default the

bank could foreclose on its security interests Any foreclosure action could cause us to seek protection under the

federal bankruptcy code which in turn would have material adverse effect on our ability to operate at level

required to maintain or achieve profitability which in turn could adversely impact our business

Second the credit agreement contains numerous negative covenants such as restricting our ability to

undertake any other financing transaction without the banks consent or prohibiting us from buying another

business or assets having purchase price in excess of $7.5 million without the banks consent The

consequences
of these covenants may include one or more of the following

increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions

limiting our ability to obtain additional financing

requiring that substantial portion of our cash flows from operations be applied to pay principal and

interest on our indebtedness and lease payments under our leases thereby reducing cash flows available

for other purposes

limiting our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business and the industry in which

we compete and

placing us at possible competitive disadvantage compared to competitors with better leverage or better

access to capital resources

Third the agreement requires us to maintain various financial ratios and satisfy various other financial and

operating requirements and conditions including borrowing base computation These ratios and the borrowing
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base computation limit our ability to draw on the facility Also failure to satisfy these ratios requirements and

conditions could result in breach of the loan covenants giving the bank the right to declare default and

commence proceedings to collect the debt Our ability to satisfy these ratios requirements and conditions may be

affected by events that are beyond our control These ratios requirements and conditions together with the

negative covenants may restrict or limit our operating flexibility limit our flexibility in planning for and reacting

to changes in our business and make us more vulnerable to economic downturns and competitive pressures

Fourth our ratio of total liabilities to total market capitalization may exceed that of other companies in our

industry As result an investment in us could be more risky than an investment in our competitors In addition

the total amount of our debt makes us particularly susceptible to changes in general economic conditions or even

adverse changes in the financial condition in one or more of our significant customers To meet our operating

and debt service requirements which are significant we must take steps to assure that our existing customer base

is comprised of businesses having financial resources sufficient to assure timely payment for our product

shipments and that we identify creditworthy potential customers

As of December 31 2008 we were in default of the loan agreement as result of our failure to satisfy certain

financial and non-financial covenants set forth in the loan agreement We also expect that we will be in default for

the quarter ending March 31 2009 as result of our failure to satisfy certain financial covenants This latter failure

is attributable to the fact that we will incur charges of approximately $2.6 million in the first quarter of 2009 relating

to the separation agreements with our former chief executive officer and independent sourcing agent see Note in

the first quarter 2009 The bank has waived the events of default that existed at December 31 2008 and those that

we believe exist with respect to the quarter ended March 31 2009 In addition the bank intends to modify the

relevant covenants such that we may be in compliance commencing with the quarter ending June 30 2009

Finally portion of the borrowings under our credit facility are and will continue to be at variable rate

based upon prevailing interest rates which
exposes us to risk of increased interest rates

We depend on limited number of suppliers and do not have written agreements with any of them Any

disruption in our ability to purchase products from them or any drastic changes in the prices wepayfor our

products could adversely affect our gross margins and profitability which could have an adverse impact on

our operating results

All of our products are manufactured and assembled by third-party manufacturers many of which are

located in Asia principally China We depend on these third-party manufacturers to supply us with quality

products in timely and efficient manner If they fail to do so we may have to find other sources to meet our

inventory needs This could result in increased costs which we may not be able to pass on to our customers lost

sales opportunities and/or decrease in customer satisfaction which could damage our reputation

Our largest domestic supplier is HSCE formerly known as Ademco division of Honeywell International

Inc and the source of much of our Brinks Home Security inventory We purchased 36% and 34% in 2008 and

2007 respectively from HSCE We do not have written agreement with HSCE although Brinks Home

Security does Our second largest supplier based in China accounted for 38% and 42% of our inventory

purchases in 2008 and 2007 respectively including 92% of our battery purchases We continue to rely on that

supplier as our principal source for batteries because of its price the quality of its products its ability to satisfy

our need for broad range of battery sizes We believe that we obtain competitive pricing from them because of

the volume of our purchases If our relationship with that supplier was to terminate for any reason or the factory

could no longer provide us with favorable pricing we could lose significant competitive advantage and might

have to source our purchases from multiple factories This could have an adverse impact on the price we pay for

batteries and other products and may adversely impact other factors such as the quality of our products and the

timeliness of our shipments This could then adversely impact our ability to meet customer expectations and

damage our reputation

13



Any disruption in our ability to move our goods from the manufacturers to our logistics centers or from

our logistics centers to our customers could result in lost business

Other than some of the items we purchase to fulfill our obligations to Brinks Home Security and its

authorized dealers substantially all of our products are manufactured outside the United States and most of our

products are then shipped from one of our logistics centers to our customers As result we depend on third

parties principally shippers and shipping brokers freight forwarders and customs brokers to facilitate our

transportation needs Transportation delays or interruptions such as those caused by labor strikes natural

disasters terrorism inspection delays import restrictions bad weather or acts of war could impede our ability to

timely deliver our products to our customers These delays could damage our reputation and materially and

adversely affect our operations and financial condition Also these interruptions could increase our costs if for

example we were forced to ship our products via air rather than ocean freight or if insurance costs were to

increase significantly as result of terrorism or acts of war

We depend on foreign manufacturers which exposes us to various financial political and economic risks

For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 we purchased approximately 49% and 50% respectively

of our products through foreign sources predominantly in China In some instances particularly when we are

dealing with new supplier we are required to finance the tooling cost that the factory incurs to meet our

requirements We are at risk if the factory cannot deliver the goods to us Our ability to sell certain products at

competitive prices could be adversely affected by any of the following

increases in tariffs or duties

changes in trade treaties

strikes or delays in air or sea transportation

future legislation with respect to pricing and/or import quotas on products imported from foreign

countries

changes in local laws and regulations

wars hostilities or other military activity

expropriation of private enterprises

currency limitations including restrictions on repatriation or transfer of funds and

turbulence in offshore economies or financial markets

Our ability to be competitive with respect to sales of imported components could also be affected by other

governmental actions and policy changes including anti-dumping and international antitrust legislation

Currency fluctuations could have negative impact on financial performance which may result in the

loss of all or portion of your investment in us

Although all of our transactions are recorded in U.S dollars adverse currency fluctuations could make

components manufactured abroad more expensive cause shortages due to unfavorable export conditions or cause

our foreign suppliers to limit exports to the United States Significant changes in the value of the Chinese

Renminbi in relation to the U.S dollar has increased the cost of goods and raw materials for Chinese

manufacturers which they are incorporating into the price of goods that we purchase from them As result we

cannot assure you that currency fluctuations will not have material adverse effect on our operating results in the

future
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Some of the industries we sell to are cyclical which causes our operating results to fluctuate sign jficantly

Many of the products that rely on batteries and related power accessories constitute discretionary purchases

Consumer spending is unpredictable and is affected by many factors including interest rates consumer

confidence levels tax rates employment levels and prospects and general economic conditions As result

continued recession in the general economy or other conditions affecting disposable consumer income and retail

sales would likely reduce our sales

We cannot predict the timing or the severity of the cycles within our industry In particular it is difficult to

predict how long and to what levels any industry upturn or downturn and/or general economic weakness will last

or will be exacerbated by terrorism or war or other factors on our industry The electronic components

distribution industry has historically been affected by general economic downturns These economic downturns

have often had an adverse economic effect upon manufacturers end-users of electronic components and

electronic components distributors Our industry also directly depends on the continued growth of the electronic

components industry and indirectly on end-user demand for our customers products The timing of new product

developments the life-cycle of existing electronic products and the level of acceptance and growth of new

products can also affect demand for electronic components Due to changing conditions our customers have

experienced and may in the future experience periods of inventory corrections which could have significant

negative impact on our results We have supported in the past and expect in the future to support new

technologies and emerging markets If these new technologies and emerging markets fail to be accepted or grow
our operating results could suffer significantly Our operating results have significantly fluctuated in the past

and will likely fluctuate in the future because of these market changes and factors

Our industry is susceptible to supply shortages and price volatility Any delay or inability to obtain

components or significant increase in the price of components may have an adverse effect on our operating

results

The electronics industry in general has been susceptible to supply shortages and price volatility In part

these conditions are attributable to the price of lead and copper the two principal raw materials used to

manufacture electronic components and the price of oil which impacts both manufacturing costs and shipping

costs Over the past few years prices for lead and copper have increased significantly In addition the price of

oil key factor in determining shipping rates has been extremely volatile over the last couple of years These

price increases could lead to supply shortages as manufacturers hold up or delay production in the hope that

prices will come down or because they do not have the capital to continue purchasing raw materials at the same

level These shortages could adversely impact our ability to satisfy customer demands impairing not only our

financial performance but jeopardizing our ongoing relationships with our customers In addition it is not

always possible to pass along these price increases to our customers which would have an unfavorable impact on

our gross margins and overall profitability On the other hand as result of price decreases which are also

possible when dealing with commodity-based products we may experience periods when our investment in

inventory exceeds the market price of such products This could have negative impact on our sales and gross

profit

Our business model assumes that distributors will continue to play significant role in the electronics

industry as traditional distributor as logistics pro vider or as both reversal of the trend for distributors

to play an increasing role in the electronic components industry could adversely affect our business

Traditionally distributors have played an important role in the electronics industry serving as the bridge

between the component manufacturers and OEMs wholesalers and retailers In recent years there has been

growing trend for OEMs and contract electronics manufacturers to outsource their procurement inventory and

materials management processes to third parties particularly electronic component distributors We believe this

trend has contributed and will continue to contribute to our growth However as result of the Internet and other

recent developments contributing to the global economy OEMs and retailers have the opportunity to contract

directly with the component manufacturers bypassing the distributors If that direct contact becomes trend our

sales would be materially adversely affected
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Competition in our industry is intense which creates sign jflcant pricing pressures on our products and

services If we cannot compete effectively our gross margins and profitability would be adversely impacted

which could have an adverse impact on the market price of our stock

We compete with numerous well-established companies many if not most of which are larger and have

greater capital and management resources Our principal competitors include other logistics companies shippers

such as UPS Supply Chain FedEx and DHL who also provide supply chain management services and battery

distributors such as Interstate Batteries MK Battery Powersonic and Yuasa as well as companies like us that

are both logistics providers and distributors In addition we are increasingly finding that manufacturers

particularly foreign manufacturers are competing against us We compete primarily on the basis of price

inventory availability scope of services quality of products and services delivery time and customer

relationships We expect competition to intensify in the future To the extent our competitors have superior

financial resources they may be better able to withstand price competition and implement extensive promotional

programs They may also be able to offer broader range of services

Our ability to remain competitive will largely depend on our ability to continue to source the products we

sell at competitive prices control costs and anticipate and respond to various trends affecting the industry These

factors include new product introductions and pricing strategies changes in customer preferences and

requirements consumer trends demographic trends and international national regional and local economic

conditions New competitors or competitors price reductions or increased spending on marketing and product

development as well as any increases in the price of raw materials that our suppliers pass on would have

negative impact on our financial condition and our competitive position as larger competitors would be in

better position to bear these costs and price increases We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete

successfully against existing or new companies

Disruption in our logistics centers may prevent us from meeting customer demand and our sales and

profitability may suffer as result

We manage our product distribution in the continental United States through our operations in Carrollton

Texas and three regional logistics centers located in Oklahoma City Columbus Georgia and Las Vegas Nevada

serious disruption such as earthquakes tornados floods or fires at any of our logistics centers could damage

our inventory and could materially impair our ability to distribute products to customers in timely manner or at

reasonable cost We could incur significantly higher costs and experience longer lead times associated with

distributing products to customers during the time that it takes for us to reopen or replace distribution center

As result any such disruption could have material adverse effect on our business

As part of our long-term growth strategy we may undertake strategic acquisitions If we are unable to

address the risks associated with these acquisitions our business operations may be disrupted and our

financial performance may be impaired

We will consider acquiring other logistics companies or distributors if we believe such an acquisition would

expand or complement our existing business In pursuing acquisition opportunities we may compete with other

companies having similar growth and investment strategies Competition for these acquisition targets could

result in increased acquisition costs and diminished pooi of businesses technologies services or products

available for acquisition Our long-term growth strategy could be impeded if we fail to identify and acquire

promising candidates on terms acceptable to us Assimilating acquired businesses involves number of other

risks including but not limited to

disrupting our business

incurring additional expense associated with write-off of all or portion of the related goodwill and

other intangible assets due to changes in market conditions or because acquisitions are not providing the

expected benefits

incurring unanticipated costs or unknown liabilities
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managing more geographically-dispersed operations

diverting managements resources from other business concerns

retaining the employees of the acquired businesses

maintaining existing customer relationships of acquired companies

assimilating the operations and personnel of the acquired businesses and

maintaining uniform standards controls procedures and policies

For all these reasons our pursuit of an overall acquisition or any individual acquisition could have material

adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations If we are unable to successfully

address any of these risks our business could be harmed

Rapid growth in our business could strain our managerial operational financia4 accounting and

information systems customer service staff and office resources Ifwefail to manage our growth effectively

our business may be negatively impacted

In order to achieve our growth strategy we will need to expand all aspects of our business including our

computer systems and related infrastructure customer service capabilities and sales and marketing efforts We
cannot assure you that our infrastructure technical staff and technical resources will adequately accommodate or

facilitate our expanded operations To be successful we will need to continually improve our financial and

managerial controls billing systems reporting systems and procedures and we will also need to continue to

expand train and manage our workforce In addition as we offer new products and services we will need to

increase the size and expand the training of our customer service staff to ensure that they can adequately respond

to customer inquiries If we fail to adequately train our customer service staff and provide staffing sufficient to

support our new products and services we may lose customers

Our success to date and our future success depend on our senior executives and other key personnel If

we lose the services of any of these individuals our business will suffer

We depend substantially on the efforts and abilities of our senior executives and other key personnel The

loss or interruption of the full-time service of one or more of these employees could materially and adversely

affect our business and operations If we were to lose any of our senior executives or key employees and were

not able to replace them quickly with someone of comparable skills our operations would be adversely impacted

In December 2008 our chief financial officer Roger Tannery resigned and in January 2009 we entered into

separation agreement with Randy Hardin who had served as our chief executive officer since 1992 We

appointed Ian Edmonds our executive vice president and chief operating officer to fill both positions on an

interim basis It is too soon for us to assess the impact these departures will have on our business

If we become subject to product returns or product liability claims resulting from defects in our products

we may face an increase in our costs loss of customers damage to our reputation or delay in the market

acceptance of our products

The products that we sell are complex and may contain undetected defects or experience unforeseen failures

We cannot assure you that the products we sell despite any safety certification they may carry are free of all

defects Even though we are not manufacturer as part of the supply chain we may be named as defendant in

lawsuit for property damage or personal injury resulting from defects in the goods we handle If that happens we

may be forced to undertake product recall program which could cause us to incur significant expenses and

could harm our reputation and that of our products In addition product liability claim brought against us even

if unsuccessful would likely be time-consuming diverting managements attention from sales and product

development efforts and costly to defend If successful such claims could require us to make significant damage

payments in excess of our insurance limits
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If we are unable to protect our intellectual property our ability to compete effectively in our markets could

be harmed

We regard our trademarks trade names service marks service names trade secrets and other intellectual

property rights to be important to our success Unauthorized use of our intellectual property by third parties may

adversely affect our business and reputation We rely on trademark law statutory and common law trade secret

protection and confidentiality agreements with our employees and with our customers and vendors whenever

possible to protect our intellectual property rights Not all of our customers and vendors agree to these

provisions and the scope and enforceability of these provisions is uncertain In addition even if our intellectual

property rights are enforceable in the United States they may not be enforceable in other countries As result

despite these precautions it may be possible for third parties to obtain and use our intellectual property without

authorization Moreover we may have to resort to litigation which is expensive and time-consuming and would

divert managements attention from our core business

We may be required to incur substantial expenses and divert management attention and resources in

defending intellectual property litigation against us or prosecuting others for their unauthorized use of our

intellectual property

We cannot be certain that products we purchase from our suppliers do not and will not infringe on issued

patents or proprietary rights of others In fact we are named defendant in an action brought by Energizer

Holdings Inc and Eveready Battery Company Inc more than 20 other respondents relating to the manufacture

importation and sale of certain alkaline batteries alleged to infringe on one of their patents On March 23 2009

Energizers petition for certiorari was denied by the U.S Supreme Court Any claim with or without merit

could result in significant litigation costs and diversion of resources and could require us to enter into royalty and

licensing agreements all of which could have material adverse effect on our business We may be unable to

obtain such licenses on commercially reasonable terms or at all and the terms of any offered licenses may not be

acceptable to us If forced to cease using such intellectual property we may not be able to develop or obtain

alternative technologies An adverse determination in judicial or administrative proceeding or failure to obtain

necessary licenses could prevent us from manufacturing using or selling certain of our products which could

have material adverse effect on our business

Furthermore parties making such claims could secure judgment awarding substantial damages as well as

injunctive or other equitable relief that could effectively block our ability to make use or sell our products in the

United States or abroad judgment like that could have material adverse effect on our business In addition

we are obligated under certain agreements to indemnify our customers or other parties if we infringe the

proprietary rights of third parties Any required indemnity payments under these agreements could have

material adverse effect on our business

We owe significant amount of money to Zunicom our former corporate parent and largest shareholder

Our obligation to repay indebtedness could strain our financial resources

As of December 31 2008 we owed to Zunicom our former corporate parent and largest shareholder an

aggregate of $5.1 million The debt is evidenced by two notes each of which bear interest of 6% per annum and

require quarterly payments aggregating $365625 The combined payments under both notes may adversely

impact our working capital position

We will incur increased costs as result of being public company which may divert management
attention from our business and impair our financial results

As public company we incur significant legal accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as

non-reporting privately-held company In addition the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as well as new rules

subsequently implemented by the SEC and the NYSE Amex has required changes in corporate governance

practices of public companies We expect these new rules and regulations to continue to increase our legal and

financial compliance costs and to make some activities more time-consuming and costly In addition we will

incur additional costs associated with our public company reporting requirements These new rules and
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regulations have also increased the cost of directors and officers liability insurance We continually

evaluate and monitor developments with respect to these rules and we cannot predict or estimate the amount of

additional costs we may incur or the timing of such costs

Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls in accordance with Section 404 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act could have material adverse effect on our ability to produce accurate financial

statements and on our stock price

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 S-Ox 404 we are required to furnish report

on our internal controls over financial reporting The internal control report must contain statement of

managements responsibility for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting

statement identifying the framework used by management to conduct the required evaluation of the

effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting managements assessment of the effectiveness of

our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of our most recent fiscal year including statement as

to whether or not internal control over financial reporting is effective and statement that our independent

registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on managements assessment of internal control

over financial reporting Managements assessment report was completed for the period covered by this report

and current rules require the independent registered public accounting firms attestation report must be completed

before we file our annual report for the year ending December 31 2009

To comply with S-Ox 404 within the prescribed period we are engaged in process to document and

evaluate our internal control over financial reporting which is both costly and challenging In this regard we

continue to dedicate internal resources engage outside consultants and implement detailed work plan to

assess and document the adequacy of internal control over financial reporting take steps to improve control

processes where appropriate validate through testing that controls are functioning as documented and

implement continuous reporting and improvement process for internal control over financial reporting

Despite our efforts we can provide no assurance as to our or our independent registered public accounting

firms conclusions with respect to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting under S-Ox

404 There is risk that neither we nor our independent registered public accounting firm will be able to

conclude within the prescribed timeframe that our internal controls over financial reporting are effective as

required by S-Ox 404 This could result in an adverse reaction in the financial markets due to loss of

confidence in the reliability of our financial statements

We are subject to various governmental regulations that could adversely afftct our business

Our operations are subject to various federal state and local regulatory requirements relating to employees

environmental product disposal and health and safety matters We could become subject to liabilities as result

of failure to comply with applicable laws and incur substantial costs to comply with existing new modified or

more stringent requirements The use of our products is also governed by variety of state and local ordinances

that could affect the demand for our products

Risks Related to Our Stock

Currently our common stock is thinly traded If an active market does not develop for our securities

you may not be able to sell our common stock when you wanL

Since our stock began trading in December 2006 daily trading volume has been erratic An active trading

market in our common stock may never develop An illiquid market makes it more difficult for you to sell our

stock should you desire or need to do so Even more the market price of our securities may be volatile

fluctuating significantly in
response to number of factors some of which are beyond our control These factors

include

quarterly and seasonal variations in operating results

changes in financial estimates and ratings by securities analysts
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announcements by us or our competitors of new product and service offerings significant contracts

acquisitions or strategic relationships

publicity about our company our services our competitors or business in general

additions or departures of key personnel

fluctuations in the costs of materials and supplies

any future sales of our common stock or other securities and

stock market price and volume fluctuations of publicly-traded companies in general and in the electronic

industry in particular

We may not be able to maintain our listing on the NYSE Amex which may adversely afftct the ability of

purchasers to resell their common stock in the secondary markeL

Although our common stock is listed on the NYSE Amex we cannot assure you that we will continue to

meet the criteria for continued listing on that exchange If we are unable to meet the continued listing criteria of

the NYSE Amex and become delisted trading of our common stock could be conducted in the Over-the-Counter

Bulletin Board In such case an investor would likely find it more difficult to dispose of our common stock or to

obtain accurate market quotations If our common stock is delisted from the NYSE Amex it will become subject

to the SECs penny stock rules which imposes sales practice requirements on broker-dealers that sell such

common stock to persons
other than established customers and accredited investors Application of this rule

could adversely affect the ability or willingness of broker-dealers to sell our common stock and may adversely

affect the ability of purchasers to resell their common stock in the secondary market

Zunicom is our largest shareholder and has significant influence over us which may result in conflicts of

interest or the appearance of such conflicts and may adversely impact our value and the liquidity of our

stock

Zunicom directly owns 41% of our outstanding common stock William Tan our chairman is also the

chairman of Zunicom Ian Edmonds our chief operating officer acting chief executive officer acting chief

financial officer member of our board of directors the Board and the son-in-law of Mr Tan is also

member of the board of directors of Zunicom As result Zunicom has significant influence over all matters

requiring approval by our stockholders including the election and removal of directors any proposed merger
consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets and other corporate transactions This concentration

of influence could be disadvantageous to other stockholders with different interests which could result in

reducing our profitability In addition this concentration of share ownership and the appearance of conflicts

even if such conflicts do not materialize may adversely affect the trading price for our common stock because

investors often perceive disadvantages in owning stock in companies with significant concentration of

ownership among limited number of shareholders

Future sales or the potential for sale of substantial number of shares of our common stock could cause

the trading price of our common stock to decline and could impair our ability to raise capital through

subsequent equity offerings

Sales of substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public markets or the perception that

these sales may occur could cause the market price of our stock to decline and could materially impair our ability

to raise capital through the sale of additional equity securities We have 5000000 shares of common stock

issued and outstanding and an additional 2300000 shares of common stock reserved for future issuance as

follows

2000000 shares reserved for issuance under our 2006 Stock Option Plan and

300000 shares underlying warrants issued to the underwriters of our initial public offering IPO
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All of our outstanding common shares may be freely traded However since our IPO these shares have

been thinly-traded in the public market Future sales or even the possibility of future sales may depress our

common stock price

Management has broad discretion over the use ofproceeds from our IPO and may not apply them

effectively or in the manner currently contemplated

We have broad discretion in determining the specific uses of the proceeds from our IPO and when those

proceeds will be used The timing and use of our IPO proceeds will depend on number of factors including

differences between expected and actual revenues from operations or availability of commercial financing

opportunities unexpected expenses or expense overruns or unanticipated opportunities requiring cash

expenditures As result shareholders will not have the opportunity to evaluate economic financial or other

information on which we base our decisions on how to use the proceeds Shareholders will rely on the judgment

of our management with only limited information about their specific intentions regarding the use of proceeds

We may spend most of the proceeds of our IPO in ways with which shareholders may not agree If we fail to

apply these funds effectively our business results of operations and financial condition may be materially and

adversely affected

We may issue shares ofpreferred stock in the future which could depress the price of our stock

Our corporate charter authorizes us to issue shares of blank-check preferred stock The Board has the

authority to fix and determine the relative rights and preferences of preferred shares as well as the authority to

issue such shares without further shareholder approval As result the Board could authorize the issuance of

series of preferred stock that would grant to holders preferred rights to our assets upon liquidation the right to

receive dividends before dividends are declared to holders of our common stock and the right to the redemption

of such preferred shares together with premium prior to the redemption of the common stock To the extent

that we do issue such additional shares of preferred stock the rights of the holders of our common stock could be

impaired thereby including without limitation with respect to liquidation

Texas law and provisions of our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws could deter or

prevent takeover attempts by potential purchaser of our common stock that would be willing to pay you

premiumforyour shares of our common stock

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws and the corporate laws of the State of Texas

include provisions designed to provide the Board with time to consider whether hostile takeover offer is in our

and shareholders best interests but could be utilized by the Board to deter transaction that would provide

shareholders with premium over the market price of our shares These provisions include the availability of

authorized but unis sued shares of common stock for issuance from time to time at the discretion of the Board the

availability of authorized shares of preferred stock the number of which to be issued from time to time and their

terms and conditions being solely in the discretion of the Board bylaws provisions enabling the Board to increase

the size of the board and to fill the vacancies created by the increase and bylaw provisions establishing advance

notice procedures with regard to business to be presented at shareholder meetings or to director nominations

other than those by or at the direction of the Board The Texas Business Organization Code also contains

provisions intended to protect shareholders and prohibit or discourage various types of hostile takeover activities

These provisions may discourage potential acquisition proposals and could delay or prevent change in control

including under circumstances where our shareholders might otherwise receive premium over the market price

of our shares These provisions may also have the effect of making it more difficult for third parties to cause the

replacement of our current management and may limit the ability of our shareholders to approve
transactions that

they may deem to be in their best interests

We do not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future This could make our stock less attractive

to potential investors

We anticipate that we will retain all future earnings and other cash resources for the future operation and

development of our business and we do not intend to declare or pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future
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Future payment of cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors after taking into account

many factors including our operating results financial condition and capital requirements

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTIES

Our executive offices are located in Carroilton Texas

On February 2002 we entered into lease for logistics center in Carrollton Texas which was amended in

March 2003 and November 2006 As amended the lease covers total of approximately 216000 square feet and

expires March 31 2013 Monthly base payments for 2008 and 2009 are approximately $41900 $46400 for 2010

through 2012 and $0 for the final three months January 2013 through March 31 2013

On April 30 2003 we entered into lease agreement for approximately five years with approximately 5000

square feet of retail and warehouse space in Oklahoma City Oklahoma We are leasing this space for

approximately $1700 per month The lease expires July 31 2009 We expect we will be able to renew this lease at

comparable terms

On June 28 2007 we entered into lease agreement during 2007 for approximately 18000 square feet of

retail and warehouse space in Columbus Georgia We are leasing this
space

for approximately $6000 per

month This lease expires July 31 2010

On April 30 2008 we entered into new lease agreement for 21427 square feet of retail and warehouse space

in Las Vegas Nevada The lease term is from September 2008 through August 31 2011 Rent for September and

October 2008 was waived from November 2008 through August 2009 was $13607 per month from September

2009 through August 2010 will be $14151 per month and from September 2010 through August 2011 will be

$14718

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Energizer Holdings Inc and Eveready Battery Company Inc collectively Eveready have initiated legal

proceedings against us and over 20 other respondents relating to the manufacture importation and sale of certain

alkaline batteries alleged to infringe U.S Patent No 5464709 Eveready is seeking general exclusion order with

respect to future importation of these batteries We denied infringement and have been vigorously defending this

action The International Trade Commission ruled against Eveready and Eveready then appealed to the United

States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit On January 25 2006 in the Federal Circuit reversed the

Commissions holding of invalidity and remanded for further proceedings based on its construction of Evereadys

patent On February 23 2007 the International Trade Commission again ruled that Evereadys patent was invalid

and terminated the investigation Eveready appealed that decision to the Federal Circuit where oral arguments were

heard on November 2007 On April21 2008 three judge panel of the Federal Circuit Court affirmed the

International Trade Commissions ruling of invalidity On June 2008 Eveready filed Petition for Rehearing and

an En Bane Petition both of which have since been denied On February 112009 Eveready filed Petition for

Writ of Certiorari with the United States Supreme Court which is currently pending For more information see In

re Certain Zero-Mercury-Added Alkaline Batteries Parts Thereof and Products Containing Same Investigation No
337-TA-493 in the United States Intemational Trade Commission On March 23 2009 Energizers petition for

certiorari was denied by the U.S Supreme Court

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE Amex under the symbol UPG The following table sets forth for the

periods indicated the high and low sale prices per share for our common stock as reported on NYSE Amex The

quotations reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up mark-down or commissions and may not represent

actual transactions

Sale Prices

High Low

Fiscal year 2008

First Quarter 4.20 2.65

Second Quarter 5.12 2.45

Third Quarter 4.70 2.43

Fourth Quarter 3.63 1.15

Fiscal year 2007

First Quarter 7.10 3.96

Second Quarter 5.40 4.05

Third Quarter 5.00 3.99

Fourth Quarter 5.05 3.77

On March 202009 the closing price of our common stock was $1.40

No dividends have been declared or paid on our common stock since our IPO and none are anticipated at this

time We have no shares of preferred stock outstanding

As of March 202009 the Company had 5000000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding held by

approximately 527 shareholders of record

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities and Other Information

Our IPO was declared effective on December 20 2006 In the offering we received net proceeds of

approximately $11.8 million Initially the IPO proceeds were used to pay down the balance on our credit facility

which allowed us to increase our inventory purchases In addition we have allocated the IPO proceeds as follows

$1.4 million to develop and implement our new warehouse management system

$0.3 million to establish new distribution center in Columbus Georgia

$0.1 million to establish new distribution center in Las Vegas Nevada

$0.3 million in connection with new product development

$1.0 million to purchase the Monarch assets

We have not used
any

of the IPO proceeds to make direct or indirect payments to any directors or officers

ITEM SELECT CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

As smaller reporting company we are not required to provide the information required by this Item

ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The year 2008 marked our second full year as publicly traded company Consistent with our operating

history we continued to grow our business in the rapidly expanding battery and supply chain management

industries

23



Overall our 8.6% revenue growth compared to 2007 was accomplished by increasing our penetration of new and

existing customer accounts and diversifying our product mix

For the full-year 2008 our revenues increased to $117.9 million up $9.4 million or 8.6% from $108.5 million

for 2007 Our operating income decreased to $3.2 million in 2008 down $1.0 million from $4.2 million in 2007

Our net income decreased to $1.2 million in 2008 down $1.0 million from $2.2 million in 2007

Our 2008 revenues from sources other than Brinks Home Security and its authorized dealers rose 21.0% to

$64.8 million from $53.6 million for 2007 reflecting growth of new and existing customer accounts and improved

product mix Growth in our higher margin business for 2008 was driven approximately 38% by volume and 62% by

price increases Revenues from Brinks Home Security and its authorized dealers decreased to $53.1 million down

3.4% compared to $55.0 million for 2007 We believe this decrease primarily reflects slower growth in the

residential housing market

Gross margin improved as percentage of revenues for the year ended December 31 2008 to 15.5% compared to

14.7% for the comparable period in 2007 due primarily to an improved product mix

We believe the 21.0% revenue growth in 2008 over 2007 in our battery and related power accessory business

reflects more focused marketing efforts and increased market penetration We also expanded our battery charger

and power accessory lines to better meet the evolving needs of our customers and ultimately the end-user We will

continue to capitalize on favorable industry trends such as the growing demand for productivity mobility and

portability in the consumer electronics industry

While 2008s financial results were comparatively strong the year was not without its challenges Throughout

the full year we faced higher raw material costs as prices of lead copper and zinc reached new levels Sales to

Brinks Home Security and its authorized dealers was down 3.4% in 2008 offset by continued growth and strength

of our battery and related power accessory business Our business has also been impacted by the severest recession

to hit the U.S economy in over generation Despite these challenges we are on financially sound footing with

strong balance sheet and line of credit to provide the resources for continued growth

In December 2008 Roger Tannery our chief financial officer resigned and in January 2009 we entered into

separation agreement with Randy Hardin who had served as our chief executive officer since 1992 Ian Edmonds
our executive vice president and chief operating officer was appointed to fill both positions on an interim basis In

the fourth quarter of 2008 we expensed $147000 in connection with Mr Tannerys resignation The total payments

due to or for the benefit of Mr Hardin under his separation agreement total approximately $513000 payable over

two-year period will be expensed in the first quarter of 2009 In March 2009 we entered into an agreement

canceling the arrangement we had with our primary independent sourcing agent The total payments due to our

former independent sourcing agent under this cancellation agreement total $2.565 million payable over three-year

period of which $469000 was expensed in 2008 and $2.1 million will be expensed in the first quarter of 2009

We remain cautiously optimistic and opportunistic about 2009 Our core business though growing slower than

we anticipated is strong despite the recession In addition to taking steps to manage the difficult economic

conditions we are also focused on developing higher-margin products and markets and diversifying our markets to

minimize our exposure to the broader economy

In January 2009 we completed the acquisition of the assets and hunting product line including all tangible and

intangible property related thereto marketed under the trade name Monarch The high-quality Monarch product

line is strategic extension of both our existing outdoor product line and customer base We plan to leverage our

global network of suppliers and expertise in supply chain logistics to reduce manufacturing and other supply chain

costs for the acquired product line

We are cautiously and diligently evaluating markets and acquisition opportunities that facilitate reaching our

strategic objectives We remain conservative on this front due to the economic climate However we believe that

the current recession and the associated deterioration in stock values and market prices has created growth

opportunities We believe that with our strong balance sheet relatively healthy core business and unused capacity

under our banking facility we are well-positioned to take advantage of these opportunities We continue to make
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the necessary investments in our infrastructure namely our distribution facilities our warehouse management

system and our people to support and facilitate our immediate and long-term growth objectives

Results of Operations Year Ended December 31 2008 Compared to December 31 2007

Revenues

Net revenues for the year ended December 31 2008 were $117.9 million compared to net revenues of$108.5

million for the similarperiod in 2007 an increase of $9.4 million or 8.6% Revenues from Brinks Home Security

and its authorized dealers was $53.1 million compared to $55.0 million in the 2007 period decrease of $1.8

million or 3.3% As most of our Brinks Home Security business is related to residential security systems we

attribute this decrease primarily to the overall slowdown in the residential construction industry thus slowing the

demand for certain security products Revenues from batteries and related power accessories increased $11.2

million to approximately $64.8 million in 2008 from $53.6 million in 2007 or 21.0% We attribute this increase to

more focused marketing effort to existing and new accounts

Cost of sales

Cost of sales is comprised of the base product cost commissions to sourcing agents freight duty and

servicing fees where applicable Cost of sales totaled $99.6 million for the year ended December 31 2008

compared to $92.5 million in the comparable 2007 period an increase of $7.1 million or 7.6% Cost of sales as

percentage of sales decreased to 84.5% in the 2008 period from 85.3% for 2007 This cost decrease was

attributable to higher margins on batteries and related power accessories but offset by lower margins earned on

sales to Brinks Home Security and its authorized dealers Our overall gross margin for the year ended December

31 2008 was approximately 15.5% compared to gross margin of 14.7% for the comparable period in 2007

Operating expenses

Selling general and administrative
expenses

increased approximately $3.3 million or 28.1% to approximately

$15.1 million from $11.8 million for 2007 Of this increase approximate amounts totaling $1.0 million was

attributable to bad debts $0.8 million was attributable to compensation and other employee related expenses

including the amount payable to our former chief financial officer under his separation agreement $0.7 million for

additional facilities costs including the transition to larger warehouse facility $0.4 million for sales-related costs

including marketing travel and trade show participation and general corporate expenses of $0.4 million

Interest expense

Our interest expense totaled $1.0 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to $1.2 million

for the year ended December 31 2007 decrease of $0.2 million or 16.1% The decrease is due to decrease in

the interest rate on the portion of our outstanding borrowings under our bank line of credit that were not hedged

under our swap agreement For the
year

ended December 31 2008 the average outstanding loan balance on our

line of credit was $11.3 million compared to $10.0 million for the
year

ended December31 2007

Liquidity

We had cash and cash equivalents of $0.3 million and $0.7 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

Net cash provided by operating activities was $0.6 million through December 2008 compared to cash used in

operations of $9.1 million for 2007

Cash used in investing activities was $1.8 million through December 2008 compared to $1.4 million for 2007

The cash used in 2008 was used for the purchase of property and equipment totaling $0.9 million and restricted cash

deposited in escrow totaling $0.9 million under the Monarch asset purchase agreement The cash used in 2007 was

used for the purchase of property and equipment
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Net cash provided by financing activities during 2008 was $0.8 million compared to $1.8 million used by

financing activities for 2007 The net cash provided by financing activities for 2008 included $1.5 million net

change in our line of credit and $0.7 million reduction in our notes payable to Zunicom The net cash used in

2007 was related to $1.7 million in net borrowings under our line of credit

We have $30 million line of credit with Compass Bank which matures on July 2012 This credit facility

bears interest at LIBOR Index Rate plus sliding range from 1.25% to 2.50% based on quarterly covenant

performance At December 31 2008 that rate was 2.58% In June 2008 we entered into an interest rate swap

agreement which locks-in fixed rate of 5.85% on the first $6.0 million outstanding under the line of credit

thus swapping the fixed rate for the current variable rate as calculated under the original loan agreement through

its maturity date of July 2012 The interest rate swap is accounted for as an effective cash flow hedge and the

unrealized gains or losses related to the change in fair value is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive

income loss The line of credit is due on demand and is secured by accounts receivable inventories and

equipment The lines availability is based on borrowing formula which allows for borrowings equal to 85% of

our eligible accounts receivable and percentage of eligible inventory In addition we must maintain certain

financial covenants including ratios on funded debt to EBITDA as well as fixed charge ratio At December 31

2008 approximately $14.4 million was outstanding under the line of credit and approximately $7 million

remained available for borrowings under the line of credit based on the borrowing formula

As of December 31 2008 we were in default of the loan agreement with Compass as result of our failure

to satis certain financial and non-financial covenants We also expect that we will be in default for the quarter

ending March 31 2009 as result of our failure to satisfy certain financial covenants This latter failure is

attributable to the fact that we will incur charges of approximately $2.6 million in the first quarter of 2009

relating to the separation agreements that we entered into with our former chief executive officer and independent

sourcing agent see Note in the first quarter of 2009 The bank has waived the events of default that existed at

December 31 2008 and those we believe exist with respect to the quarter ended March 31 2009 In addition the

bank intends to modif the relevant covenants such that we may be in compliance commencing with the quarter

ending June 30 2009

Capital Resources

At December 31 2008 we did not have any material commitments for capital expenditures We may enter into

various commitments during 2009 if expansion opportunities arise Material items will be disclosed in
press

releases and other appropriate filings as they develop We have no off balance sheet financing arrangements

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the amounts of payments due under specified contractual obligations at

December 31 2008

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than

Contractual Obligations Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years

Long-TermDebt 5118750 1462500 3656250

Facilities Leases 2657261 654501 2002760

EquipmentLeases 533811 178180 319679 35952

Separation Agreement 147000 147000

Total 8456822 2442181 5978689 35952

In 2006 we issued two notes to our former parent Zunicom These obligations are reflected in the table above

as Long-Term Debt One note in the original principal amount of $3 million represented the final dividend prior

to our IPO The second note in the original principal amount of $2.85 million represented the value of Zunicoms

net operating losses that we were able to use to offset our taxable income in the years prior to the IPO Both notes

bear interest at 6% require quarterly payments of interest and principal beginning September 20 2008 and mature

on June 30 2012 The aggregate balance due on the notes as of December 31 2008 was $5.1 million
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In December 2008 we entered into separation agreement with our former chief financial officer Under the

agreement we are obligated to make payments aggregating approximately $147000 over twelve month period

ending December 2009 which includes the premiums payable to our health insurance carrier for as long as he is

entitled to maintain such insurance under COBRA

The table above does not include payments due to Randy Hardin under his Separation Agreement or to our

former independent sourcing agent under his cancellation agreement Both of those agreements were entered into

in 2009 Mr Hardin will receive aggregate payments of approximately $513000 over two-year period which

includes health insurance costs over that period The former sourcing agent will receive aggregate payments of

$2.565 million over three year period including $469000 which was accrued in 2008

INTERNATIONAL CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

The goods that we purchase from Asia are subject to international currency fluctuations Management does

not believe that the fluctuation in currency presents serious threat to its operations

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States which require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the periods reported

Actual results could differ from those estimates We believe the following are the critical accounting policies

which could have the most significant effect on our reported results and require the most difficult subjective or

complex judgments by management

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 when persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists delivery has occurred the price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is reasonably

assured

We are distributor who purchases both finished goods and components from domestic and international

suppliers We add value to products and components by packaging them in customer specified kits or tailor

made units that are convenient for the customer to order and ship Additionally we have several customers that

require specific battery pack assemblies We obtain batteries and components and reconfigure finished goods

based upon customer specifications We refer to this process as battery pack assemblies We recognize sales of

finished goods at the time the customer takes title to the product

We sell products to several customers in bulk quantities We obtain the order from the customer and arrange

for the delivery of the product directly from our vendor to the customer to reduce freight costs and wear and tear

on the product from excessive handling We refer to these transactions as drop shipments because the product

is shipped directly from our vendor to our customer We also have an inventory fulfillment agreement with

Brinks Home Security We purchase handle assemble and deliver security and installation components to

Brinks Home Security and to its authorized dealers Revenues from drop shipment transactions and pursuant to

the Brinks Home Security agreement are recognized on gross basis at the time the customer takes title to the

product based on our analysis of the criteria defined in Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 99-19 for gross

revenue reporting Specifically we are the primary obligor ii we have general and physical loss inventory

risk iiiwe have credit risk iv in most cases we have discretion in supplier selection and product

specifications and we have reasonable latitude within economic constraints to negotiate prices and terms with

our customers

Income Taxes

In January 2007 we adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No 48 Accounting

for Uncertainty in Income Taxes An Interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 This
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interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in companys financial

statements FIN 48 requires companies to determine whether it is more likely than not that tax position will

be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authorities before any part of the benefit can be recorded

in the financial statements It also provides guidance on the recognition measurement and classification of

income tax uncertainties along with any related interest and penalties We did not recognize any adjustments to

the financial statements as result of our implementation of FIN 48

We utilize the asset and liability approach to accounting and reporting for income taxes in accordance with

SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed

annually for differences between the financial and tax basis of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or

deductible amounts in the future based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the

differences are expected to affect taxable income Valuation allowances are established when necessary to

reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized Income tax expense or benefit is the tax payable

or refundable for the period plus or minus the change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities

We use an estimate of our annual income tax rate to recognize provision for income taxes in financial

statements for interim periods However changes in facts and circumstances could result in adjustments to our

effective tax rate in future quarterly or annual periods

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the amount we expect to collect We maintain allowances for

doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required payments

Management considers the following factors when determining the collectibility of specific customer accounts

customer credit-worthiness past transaction history with the customer current economic industry trends and

changes in customer payment terms If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate adversely

affecting their ability to make payments additional allowances would be required Based on managements

assessment we provide for estimated uncollectible amounts through charge to earnings and credit to

valuation allowance Balances that remain outstanding after the Company has used reasonable collection efforts

are written off through charge to the valuation allowance and credit to accounts receivable

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock options under the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards No 123 revised

2004 Share-Based Payment FAS 123R which requires the recognition of the fair value of stock-based

compensation Under the fair value recognition provisions for FAS 123R stock-based compensation cost is

estimated at the grant date based on the fair value of the awards expected to vest and recognized as expense

ratably over the requisite service period of the award We have used the Black-Scholes valuation model to

estimate fair value of our stock-based awards which requires various judgmental assumptions including

estimating stock price volatility forfeiture rates and expected life Our computation of expected volatility is

based on combination of historical and market-based implied volatility In addition we consider many factors

when estimating expected forfeitures and expected life including types of awards employee class and historical

experience If any of the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model change significantly stock-based

compensation expense may differ materially in the future from that recorded in the current period

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS No 161 SFAS No 161 requires enhanced

disclosures about an entitys derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial

reporting SFAS No 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning

after November 15 2008 with early application encouraged SFAS No 161 encourages but does not require

comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption Management is currently evaluating the effects of

SFAS No 161 but the standard is not expected to have material impact on the Companys fmancial statements
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On January 12008 we adopted SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS No 157 which defines

fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands

disclosures about fair value measurements SFAS No 157 does not require any new fair value measurements but

provides guidance on how to measure fair value by providing fair value hierarchy used to classify the source of the

information On December 14 2007 the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-b which would delay the effective date of

SFAS No 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed at

fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually This proposed FSP partially defers the

effective date of SFAS No 157 to fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2008 and interim periods within those

fiscal years for items within the scope of this FSP The adoption of SFAS No 157 for nonfinancial assets and

nonfinancial liabilities is not expected to have material impact on the Companys financial position results of

operations or cash flows

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R Business Combinations SFAS 141R which

replaces SFAS 141 The provisions of SFAS No 141R are similar to those of SFAS No 141 however SFAS

No 14 1R requires companies to record most identifiable assets liabilities noncontrolling interests and goodwill

acquired in business combination at full fair value SFAS No 14 1R also requires companies to record fair

value estimates of contingent consideration and certain other potential liabilities during the original purchase price

allocation and to expense acquisition costs as incurred This statement applies to all business combinations

including combinations by contract alone Further under SFAS No 14 1R all business combinations will be

accounted for by applying the acquisition method SFAS No 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning on or

after December 15 2008 The Company will apply the provisions of SFAS No 141R to business combinations

after December 31 2008

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As smaller reporting company we are not required to provide the information required by this Item

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Information required by this Item begins on page F-i and is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENT WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9AT CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures Management with the participation of our principal

executive officer and the principal financial officer carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e

and 15-d-15e as of the end of the period covered by this report the Evaluation Date Based upon that

evaluation our interim principal executive officer and interim principal financial officer concluded that as of the

Evaluation Date our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be

disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized

and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and ii is accumulated and

communicated to our management including our principal executive and financial officers as appropriate to allow

timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Our management including our interim principal executive officer and interim principal financial officer does

not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud

control system no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance

that the objectives of the control system are met Further the design of control system must reflect the fact that

there are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs Because of the

inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control

issues and instances of fraud if any have been detected
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Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our management is responsible for

establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in rule 13a-15f under

the Exchange Act Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of

December 312008 In making this assessment our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Our

management has concluded that as of December 31 2008 our internal control over financial reporting is effective

based on these criteria This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting

firm regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by our

registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the SEC that permit us to provide only

managements report in this annual report

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting There were no changes in our internal controls over

financial reporting that occurred during our fiscal fourth quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely

to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The names ages
and titles of our executive officers and directors as of March 2009 are as follows

Name Positions

Ian Cohn Edmonds 37 Executive Vice President Chief Operating Officer

Interim Chief Executive Officer President and

Chief Financial Officer and Director

Mimi Tan 35 Senior Vice President Business Development and Marketing

and Corporate Secretary

Julie Sansom-Reese 46 Senior Vice President of Finance and Treasurer

Ramin Salehi 35 Senior Vice President of Supply Chain

and Information Technology

William Tan 65 Chairman of the Board

William Bailey 48 Director

Leslie Bernhard 64 Director

Bert Calvert 55 Director

Robert Gutkowski 60 Director

Appointed Interim Chief Financial Officer as of December 122008 upon resignation of Roger Tannery

Appointed Interim Chief Executive Officer and Interim President on January 21 2009 upon resignation of

Randy Hardin

IAN COLIN EDMONDS has been director since January 1999 our chief operating officer since May 2002

our executive vice president since October 2006 our interim chief financial officer since December 12 2008 and

our interim chief executive officer and interim president since January 21 2009 He is responsible for overall

operations corporate finance MA and planning activities and risk management Mr Edmonds serves as director

of Zunicom and from July 1997 through December 2006 served as an officer first as vice president and from April

2003 as executive vice president of Zunicom He also served as director of AlphaNet Inc wholly-owned

subsidiary of Zunicom from October 1999 through December 2006 Mr Edmonds holds Bachelors Degree in
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Marketing with Minor in Statistics from the University of Denver Mr Edmonds is the husband of Mimi Tan and

the son-in-law of William Tan

MIMI TAN has been our corporate secretary since February 1998 and our senior vice president of business

development and marketing since December 2006 She served as our vice president of business development and

marketing from May 2002 through December 2006 Her responsibilities include new business development and

projects corporate marketing and overall branding strategies She served as Zunicoms director of operations and

corporate secretary from February 1998 through December 2006 and as AlphaNets corporate secretary from

October 1999 through December 2006 Ms Tan graduated cum laude from the University of Denver in November

1996 with Bachelors Degree in Marketing and Minor in Statistics She is the daughter of William Tan and the

wife of Ian Edmonds

JULIE SANSOM-REESE has been employed by us since 1986 She was our chief financial officer from 1991

to October 2007 and is now serving as our senior vice president of finance She served as chief financial officer for

Zunicom Inc from 1992 through July 1997 and was appointed interim chief financial officer of Zunicom in

November 1999 and assumed that role on permanent basis from November 2000 through December 2006 She

also served as chief financial officer of AlphaNet from October 2003 through December 2006 Ms Sansom-Reese

earned Bachelor of Arts in Business from Texas Tech University in May 1986

RAMIN SALEHI joined the company in September 1997 as database design analyst In December of 2006
Mr Salehi was appointed senior vice president of supply chain and information technology He is responsible for

the overall direction and tactical execution of supply chain and information systems operations of the company Mr
Salehi holds Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Systems Design from the University of Houston Clear

Lake

Non-Employee Directors

WILLIAM TAN has been chairman of the Board since January 1999 He has served as the chairman of

Zunicom since February 1997 and of AlphaNet since October 1999 Mr Tans principal business has been private

investments and he has held senior executive positions in number of financing insurance textile property

development and related businesses Mr Tan is the father of Mimi Tan and the father-in-law of Ian Edmonds

WILLIAM BAILEY became director in August 2008 He has been Managing Partner of the CPA firm of

Bailey Smith Sorrells LLP and the law firm of Bailey Smith PLLC where he has dual practices in public

accounting and law Since 2005 he has been engaged in broad accounting and tax matters including mergers and

acquisitions for wide variety of corporate partnership and estate clients From 1987 until 2005 Mr Bailey was

employed by TXU Corporation and served in both accounting and legal counsel roles with emphasis on planning

compliance acquisitions and dispositions reorganization and restructuring including SEC tax reporting and

compliance as well as internal and external auditing Mr Bailey has Bachelor of Science in accounting and

economics from Southeastern Oklahoma State University with honors holds Juris Doctorate from Texas

Wesleyan University School of Law and is Certified Public Accountant in the State of Texas

LESLIE BERNHARD became director in December 2006 upon the effectiveness of our initial public offering

She is co-founder of AdStar Inc OTC ADST.PK provider of technology services to the newspaper classified

advertising industry She has been director of AdStar since its inception in 1986 and its president and chief

executive officer since 1991 Ms Bernhard also serves on the board of directors of Milestone Scientific Inc

OTCBB MLSS.OB developer and manufacturer of medical and dental equipment Ms Bernhard holds B.S

degree from St Johns University

BERT CALVERT became director in August 2008 He has been the Vice President and ChiefOperating

Officer of J-COR Enterprises Inc Elite Realty Group of Texas residential commercial and property

management firm since January 2007 He has also been member of the Board of Directors of J-COR Enterprises

since July 1987 Mr Calvert is also President of Lagniappe Development Inc property development company
since July 2006 From 1985 through 2006 he was the owner of Calvert Development Company residential and

commercial building and development company based in Midlothian Texas
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ROBERT GUTKOWSKI became director in December 2006 upon the effectiveness of our initial public

offering He is the founder president and chief executive officer of Marketing Group International provider of

consulting services to businesses in the sports and entertainment industries He advised the New York Yankees in

regard to the creation of the YES Network regional sports and entertainment network He previously served as

chief executive officer of the Marquee Group Inc worldwide sports and entertainment firm that managed

produced and marketed sports and entertainment events and provided representation for athletes entertainers and

broadcasters From 1991 until 1994 he was president of Madison Square Garden Inc where he was responsible for

the operations of the New York Knickerbockers basketball team the New York Rangers hockey club and MSB
Communications which included the MSG Television Network Mr Gutkowski was member of the Board of

Directors of EuroTrust A/S Nasdaq EURO from May 2004 through May 2006

Board Composition

Our Board currently consists of seven directors Each director is elected for term of one year and serves until

successor is duly elected and qualified or until his or her death resignation or removal William Tan Chairman of

the Board is the father of Mimi Tan and the father-in-law of Ian Edmonds

Director Independence

majority of our Board is independent as required by and as defined in Section 803A of the NYSE Amex

listing standards We believe that Messrs Bailey Calvert and Gutkowski and Ms Bernhard are independent under

those standards director is considered independent as long as he or she does not have relationship with the

company or management that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the

directors responsibilities

In determining director independence our Board applies the independence standards set by NYSE Amex In its

application of such standards the Board takes into consideration all transactions with independent directors and the

impact of such transactions if any on any of the independent directors ability to continue to serve on our Board

To that end for the fiscal year ended 2008 our Board considered all the fees paid to the independent directors

disclosed below in Item 11 Executive Compensation Compensation of Directors and determined that those

transactions were within the limits of the independence standards set by NYSE Amex and did not impact their

ability to continue to serve as independent directors

Board Meetings

The Board met seven times during 2008 majority of the directors attended all of the meetings of the Board

All persons who were directors during 2008 attended at least 75% of these meetings Absent special circumstance

each director is expected to attend the annual meeting of shareholders

Committees Established by the Board

The Board has established three standing committees an Audit Committee Compensation Committee and

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee Each committee is made up entirely of independent directors

Compensation Corporate Governance and
Name Audit Committee Committee Nominating Committee

William Bailey Chairperson

Leslie Bernhard Chairperson

Robert Gutkowski
Chairperson

Bert Calvert

indicates member

Audit Committee The Audit Committee members consist of William Bailey who serves as chairperson

Leslie Bernhard and Robert Gutkowski The Board has determined that William Bailey is an audit
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committee financial expert as that term is defined in Item 407d5 of Regulation S-K and independent for

purposes of NYSE Amex listing standards and Section 1OAm3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

The Audit Committee oversees our accounting and financial reporting processes internal systems of accounting

and financial controls relationships with auditors and audits of financial statements Specifically the Audit

Committees responsibilities include the following

selecting hiring and terminating our independent auditors

evaluating the qualifications independence and performance of our independent auditors

approving the audit and non-audit services to be performed by the independent auditors

reviewing the design implementation and adequacy and effectiveness of our internal controls and critical

policies

overseeing and monitoring the integrity of our financial statements and our compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements as they relate to our financial statements and other accounting matters

with management and our independent auditors reviewing any earnings announcements and other public

announcements regarding our results of operations and

preparing the report that the Securities and Exchange Commission requires in our annual proxy statement

Compensation Committee The Compensation Committee members consist of Leslie Bernhard as

chairperson Robert Gutkowski and Bert Calvert The Compensation Committee assists the Board in

determining the development plans and compensation of our officers directors and employees Specific

responsibilities include the following

approving the compensation and benefits of our executive officers

reviewing the performance objectives and actual performance of our officers and

administering our stock option and other equity and incentive compensation plans

The CEO may not be present during any deliberations on his compensation

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee The Corporate Governance and Nominating

Committee consists of Robert Gutkowski as chairperson William Bailey and Leslie Bernhard The

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee assists the Board by identifying and recommending individuals

qualified to become members of the Board reviewing correspondence from our shareholders and establishing and

overseeing our corporate governance guidelines Specific responsibilities include the following

evaluating the composition size and governance of our Board and its committees and making

recommendations regarding future planning and the appointment of directors to our committees

establishing policy for considering shareholder nominees to our Board

reviewing our corporate governance principles and making recommendations to the Board regarding possible

changes and

reviewing and monitoring compliance of our code of ethics and insider trading policy
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of our executive officers serve as member of the Board or compensation committee or other committee

serving an equivalent function of any other entity that has one or more of its executive officers serving as member

of our Board or Compensation Committee None of the persons who are members of our Compensation Committee

have ever been employed by us

Code of Ethics

We have adopted Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer principal financial officer and

other persons performing similar functions as well as all of our other employees and directors This Code of Ethics

is posted on our website at www.upei.com

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Based on our review of the Forms and submitted during and with respect to the year ended December 31

2008 there have been no untimely filings of such required forms

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary of Compensation

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to compensation for the
year

ended December

31 2008 earned by or paid to our chief executive officer and our two other most highly compensated executive

officers which are referred to as the Named Executive Officers

Under the SFAS No 123R we recorded compensation expense in our Financial Statements for the year ended

December 31 2008 with respect to the awards included in this table since the awards were effective and fully vested

at the end of 2008

Summary Compensation Table

All Other

Salary Cash Bonus Option Awards Compensation Total

Name Principal Position Year

Randy Hardin 2008 242000 178707 36229 456936

President and CEO 2007 220000 424870 35995 680864

Ian Edmonds 2008 214500 58000 305194 303019

EVP COO 2007 195000 64000 286044 287604

MimiTan 2008 166113 46000 56285 222431

SVP Business 2007 161200 41000 26023 5463 220453

Development

Marketing

Resigned on January 21 2009

Of this amount $202489 was paid in 2007 and the balance $222381 was paid in 2008

Option award expense as calculated by SFAS No 123R
Car lease medical insurance and long-term disability insurance payments

Medical insurance and long-term disability insurance payments
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Employment Agreements and Arrangements

In December 2006 we entered into three-year employment contract with Randy Hardin under which he served

as former president and chief executive officer Under that agreement we agreed to pay Mr Hardin in addition to

benefits generally available to all other executives of the company base salary plus an annual bonus equal to 10%

of our audited pre-tax net income as adjusted provided that our pre-tax net income exceeded targeted amount

established by the Board The employment agreement also provided for grant of options to acquire 475000 shares

of our common stock at the IPO price $7.00 per share and the use of company-leased vehicle

On January 21 2009 we entered into Separation Agreement with Mr Hardin under which his employment

agreement was terminated Under the Separation Agreement we agreed to continue to pay Mr Hardin his annual

base salary and to reimburse him for the costs of his healthcare insurance coverage through January 21 2011 the

Restricted Period to the same extent we paid for such insurance immediately prior to the termination of his

employment agreement Mr Hardin agreed that he will not during the Restricted Period compete with us in any

of our lines of business including our battery and related power accessory business and our third party logistics

business ii solicit or hire any of our employees or iii encourage any person or entity that has an existing

business relationship with us to curtail or cancel its relationship with us In addition Mr Hardin agreed not to

disclose any of our confidential or proprietary information

In December 2006 we entered into three-year employment contract with Ian Edmonds under which he serves

as our executive vice-president and chief operating officer Under the agreement Mr Edmonds received in

addition to benefits generally available to all other employees an annual base salary an annual bonus based on

company performance and his individual performance that is completely at the discretion of the Board an initial

grant of options to acquire 356250 shares of our common stock and the use of company leased vehicle

In December 2006 we entered into three-year employment contract with Mimi Tan under which she serves as

our senior vice-president of business development and marketing and corporate secretary Under the agreement

Ms Tan received in addition to benefits generally available to all other employees an annual base salary and an

annual bonus based on company performance and her individual performance that is completely at the discretion of

the Board

Outstanding Equity Awards

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to outstanding equity awards at December 31

2008 with respect to the Named Executive Officers At December 31 2008 there were no unvested stock awards

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Option Awards

Number of Securities

Underlying

Unexercised Options

Option Exercise Price

Name Exercisable
Option Expiration Date

Randy Hardin

President CEO 4750002 7.00 12/19/2016

Ian Edmonds

EVP COO 3562502 7.00 12/19/20 16

Mimi Tan

Sr V.P of Business Development

Marketing and Corp Secretary 70003 7.00 12/19/2016
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Resigned effective January 12009

Options are fully vested at December 31 2006

Options are fully vested at December 31 2007

Compensation of Directors

Our independent directors receive the following compensation

An annual retainer fee of $10000

$500 plus reimbursement for actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with attending each

Board meeting in person and $200 for attending each Board meeting telephonically

stock option grant covering 10000 shares upon his or her election or re-election to the Board The

options are exercisable immediately at price per share equal to the fair market value of the stock on the

date of grant

Each Committee member receives $500 plus reimbursement for actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in

connection with attending each Committee meeting in person or $200 for attending each Committee

meeting telephonically unless the Committee meeting immediately follows or precedes Board meeting in

which case the amounts are $200 for each meeting attended in person or $100 for each meeting attended

telephonically and

The Chairman of the Audit Committee receives an annual fee of $5000 and the Chairman for the

Compensation Committee and Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee each receives an annual

fee of $2500

Director Compensation

The following table presents information relating total compensation for our non-employee directors for the

year ended December 31 2008

Fees Earned or Option All Other

Name Paid in Cash Awards1 Compensation Total

William Tan 5473 5473
Leslie Bernhard 14925 91981 25000 49123
William Bailey 6290 91981 15488

Bert Calvert 5100 91981 14298

Robert Gutkowski 14925 91981 15665 39789
Marvin Haas 8641 5749 14390

Garland Asher 14000 91981 13048 25 36247

2008
expense as calculated by SFAS No 123R for stock option grant covering 10000 shares of our

common stock

Includes medical insurance through company plans

Services as chairman of our Boards Sourcing Committee

Retired from our Board on August 2008 Received an option grant in connection with his retirement

Paid one time consulting fee

2008 expense as calculated by SFAS No 123R for the stock option grant covering 6250 shares of our

common stock
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth information concerning the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of

March 20 2009 each person who is known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our common stock ii
each director iiieach Named Executive Officer and iv all directors and executive officers as group

Common Stock

Amount and Nature of

Name and Address1 Beneficial Ownership2 Percentage of Class3

Directors and Named Executive Officers

William Tan 2406120 44.9%

Ian Cohn Edmonds 2405120 44.9%

Mimi Tan 7000

Leslie Bernhard 20000

Robert Gutkowski 20000

William Bailey 10000

Bert Calvert 10000

All Directors and Named 2829370 49.0%

Executive Officers as group

persons

5% Shareholders

Zunicom Inc 2048870 1.0%

4315 Lovers Lane

Dallas TX 75209

Randy Hardin 475000 8.7%

370 Town East Blvd

Sunnyvale TX 75182

Wilen Management Co Inc 690074 13.9%

2360 Jopa Rd Ste 226

Lutherville MD 21093

Julian Tymczysz 268488 5.4%

11 King George St

Greenwich London SE1

United Kingdom

Less than 1.0%

Unless indicated otherwise all addresses are do Universal Power Group Inc 1720 Hayden Road Carrollton TX

75006

Except as otherwise indicated and subject to applicable community property and similar laws we assume that each

named person has the sole voting and investment power with respect to his or her shares other than shares subject to

options

Percent of Class is based on the 5000000 shares outstanding as of March 20 2009 In addition shares which person

had the right to acquire within 60 days are also deemed outstanding in calculating the percentage ownership of the

person but not deemed outstanding as to any other person

Includes 356250 shares underlying options ii 2048870 shares owned by Zunicom over which Mr Tan has

voting control by virtue of the fact that he is director of Zunicom and iii 1000 shares owned by Placement

Acceptance Inc British Virgin Islands corporation of which Mr Tan is director

Includes 356250 shares underlying options and ii 2048870 shares owned by Zunicom over which Mr Edmonds

has voting control by virtue of the fact that he is director of Zunicom Mr Edmonds does not own any shares of our

common stock directly

Represents shares underlying options

Includes 2048870 shares owned by Zunicom over which Messrs Tan and Edmonds have voting control by virtue

of the fact that they are directors of Zunicom ii 1000 shares owned by Placement Acceptance Inc over which Mr
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Tan has voting control and iii 779500 shares underlying options held by all directors and executive officers as

group

Represents shares underlying options Mr Hardin resigned from his positions with us on January 21 2009 The

options expire December 19 2016

As of March 20 2009 we are not aware of any pledges of our common stock which may at subsequent date

result in change in control of the company

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes the options granted under the Plan as well as options and warrants granted

outside the Plan as of December 31 2008 The shares covered by outstanding options are subject to adjustment for

changes in capitalization stock splits stock dividends and similarevents

Equity Compensation Plan Table

Equity Compensation Plans Approved
By Security Holders

Grants under the 2006 Stock Option Plan

Equity Compensation Plans Not

Approved By Security Holders

Warrants

Common Stock Options

Total

Number of securities to be

issued upon exercise of

Outstanding options

warrants and rights

1336114

300000

20000

1656114

Weighted-average

exercise price of

outstanding options

warrants and rights

6.79

8.40

7.00

7.08

Number of securities

remaining available for

future issuance under

equity compensation plar

excluding securities

reflected in column

663886

Not applicable

Not applicable

663886

The warrants issued in connection with our IPO in December 2006 are exercisable at 8.40 per share any
time beginning 365 days after the grant date and until the fifth anniversary of that date

On March 212007 we issued stock options to non-employees to purchase 20000 shares of our common stock

at an exercise price of $7.00 per share vesting over three years and expiring December 19 2016

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Policies and Corporate Governance

The Board has adopted resolution that in the future any transactions between us and another person or entity

who is deemed to be an affiliate or related party must be approved by majority of our disinterested directors

Transactions with Related Parties

From January 2008 through December 31 2008 we engaged in the following related party transactions

Immediately before our IPO we declared $3 million dividend payable to our former parent Zunicom
The dividend is evidenced by note payable which has maturity date of June 20 2012 and which bears

interest at the rate of 6% per annum Interest on the unpaid principal amount of this note is payable

quarterly in arrears and the principal amount will be repaid in 16 equal quarterly installments of$187500

beginning September 20 2008 The unamortized balance at December 31 2008 was $2.625 million
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Immediately before the IPO we issued note to Zunicom in the original principal amount of $2.85

million representing the value of Zunicom net operating losses that we were able to use to offset our

taxable income in the years prior to the IPO The note bears interest at the rate of 6% per annum and

matures on June 20 2012 Interest on the unpaid principal amount of this note is payable quarterly in

arrears and the principal amount will be repaid in 16 equal quarterly installments of $178125 beginning

September 202008 The unamortized balance at December 31 2008 was $2.494 million

On December 122008 Roger Tannery resigned from his position as our chief financial officer and Ian

Edmonds was appointed interim chief financial officer We entered into separation agreement with the following

terms he will provide consulting services to us on an as-needed basis ii he releases us from any and all claims

iiihe will not solicit any of our employees or customers through December 2009 iv we will pay him an

aggregate of approximately $147000 through December 2009 and we will continue to provide him with health

insurance coverage for as long as he is eligible to participate in our health insurance plan under COBRA

On January 21 2009 in connection with the resignation of Randy Hardin from his positions as president and

chief executive officer we entered into Separation Agreement which is described in Item 11 above

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The Board has reviewed the following audit and non-audit fees we paid to our independent public accountants

for purposes of considering whether such fees are compatible with maintaining the auditors independence The

policy of the Board is to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services performed by its independent public

accountants before the services are performed

Audit Fees Fees billed for service rendered by KBA Group LLP for the audit of the financial statements and

for the reviews of our Form 10-Q filings were approximately $165000 for 2008 and approximately $161000 for

2007

Audit-Related Fees None

Tax Fees Aggregate fees billed for permissible tax services rendered by KBA Group LLP consisted of

approximately $34000 for 2008 and approximately $24000 for 2007 These amounts include tax consulting

preparation of federal and state income tax returns and franchise tax returns

All Other Fees Fees billed for services rendered by KBA Group LLP for review of our annual proxy

statements and Form 8-K filings were approximately $6000 for 2008 and approximately $7000 for 2007

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

Financial Statements

The following financial statements of Universal Power Group Inc are submitted as separate section of this

report See F-pages and are incorporated by reference in Item

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Balance Sheets as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Statements of Income for the years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Statement of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007
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Notes to Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules See response to Item 15c below

Exhibits See response to Item 15b below

Exhibits

Exhibit

No Description

3i Amended and Restated Certificate of Formation including Amended and Restated Articles of

Incorporation

3u Amended and Restated Bylaws

4.1 Specimen stock certificate

4.2 Form of representatives warrant

l0.la Form of 2006 Stock Option Plan

10.1b Form of Stock Option Agreement

10.1c Amendment to the 2006 Stock Option Plan

10.2 Separation Agreement between UPG and Randy Hardin2

10 Form of Ian Edmonds Employment Agreement

104 Form of Mimi Tan Employment Agreement

10.5 Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Security Agreement with Compass Bank dated June 19

2007

10.6 Asset Purchase Agreement for Monarch Hunting Products dated September 19 2008

10.7 Real Property Lease for 1720 Hayden Drive Carrollton Texas

10.8 Real Property Lease for 11605-B North Santa Fe Oklahoma City Oklahoma

10.9 Real Property Lease for Las Vegas Nevada

10.10 Termination Agreement with Stan Battat a/b/a Import Consultants3

10.11a Form of Promissory Note in the amount of $2850000 payable to Zunicom

10.11b Form of Promissory Note in the amount of $3000000 payable to Zunicom

10.13 Third Party Logistics Purchase Agreement dated as of November 2008 with Brinks Home

Security Inc

23.1 Consent of KBA Group LLP

31.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

31.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

32.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S .C

Section 1350 as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

Management Contract compensatory plan or arrangement

Incorporated by reference to the Exhibit with the same number to our Registration Statement on Form 5-1

SEC File No 33 3-137265 effective as of December 20 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current report on Form 8-K filed on January 23 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 17 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 25 2008

Other Financial Statement Schedules

The information required by the schedules called for under Regulation is either not applicable or is

included in the financial statements or notes thereto
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Company has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Date March 31 2009

Universal Power Group Inc

By Is Ian Edmonds

Ian Edmonds

Interim President and CEO

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Capacity Date

Principal Executive and Financial

Officer

Interim Chief Executive Officer March 31 2009

Is Ian Edmonds Interim Chief Financial Officer and

Ian Edmonds Director

Directors

Is William Tan Chairman of the Board March 31 2009

William Tan

Is William Bailey Director March 31 2009

William Bailey

Is Bert Calvert Director March 31 2009

Bert Calvert

Is Robert Gutkowski Director March 31 2009

Robert Gutkowski

Is Leslie Bernhard Director March 31 2009

Leslie Bernhard
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of

Universal Power Group Inc

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Universal Power Group Inc the Company as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related statements of income changes in shareholders equity and cash

flows for the years then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is

not required to have nor were we engaged to perform audits of its internal control over financial reporting Our

audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Universal Power Group Inc as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of its operations and

its cash flows for each the
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America

/sIKBA GROUP LLP

Dallas Texas

March 312009
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC
BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

December 31

2008 2007

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 326194 691288

Restricted cash 900000

Accounts receivable

Trade net of allowance for doubtful accounts of

$1143213 and $129371 12423279 12593430

Other 50303 149262

Inventories finished goods net of allowance for

obsolescence of $358350 and $193780 37304500 32345377

Current deferred tax asset 1555173 983114

Income tax receivable 193386

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 880528 880907

Total current assets 53633363 47643378

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Logistics and distribution systems 1795935 1417269

Machinery and equipment 651916 338220

Furniture and fixtures 436424 492267

Leasehold improvements 388334 272096

Vehicles 155630 151598

3428239 2671450

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 1407712 985735

Net property and equipment 2020527 1685715

OTHER ASSETS 86879 81459

TOTAL ASSETS 55740769 49410552

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthesejinancial statements
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC
BALANCE SHEETS Continued

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

December 31

2008 2007

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Line of credit 14351775 12833031
Accounts payable 16418768 12257350
Accrued liabilities 200100 537248

Interest rate swap liability 484131

Current portion of payable to Zunicom Inc 1462500 731250

Current portion of capital lease obligations 6609
Current portion of deferred rent 57984 64446

Total current liabilities 32975258 26429934
NOTES PAYABLE TO ZUNICOM INC less current

portion 3656250 5118750
NON-CURRENT DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 230611 25455
DEFERRED RENT less current portion 168317 180776

Total liabilities 37030436 31754915
COMMITMENTS
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Common stock $0.01 par value 50000000 shares

authorized 5000000 shares issued and outstanding 50000 50000
Additional paid-in capital 15529783 15381684
Retained earnings 3450076 2223953
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 319526

Total shareholders equity 18710333 17655637
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS

EQUITY 55740769 49410552

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Operating income

Other income expense
Interest expense including $346000 and $351000 to

Zunicom Inc
Interest income

Other net

Total other expense net

Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income

Net income per share

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

December 31

2008 2007

117897644 108517097

99599576 92541735

18298068 15975362

15063398 11761427

3234670 4213935

0.25 0.44

0.25 0.44

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

1003195
569

45069

957557

2277113

1050990

1226123

1195079
396083

798996

3414939

1190986
2223953

5000000

5000000

5000000

5001305
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Common Stock

Accumulated

Other

Additional Retained Comprehensive

Shares Amount Paid-in Capital Earnings Loss Total

Balances at January

2007 5000000 50000 15263457 15313457

Stock-based

compensationexpense 118227 118227

Net income _________ _____________ 2223953 2223953

Balances at December

31 2007 5000000 50000 15381684 2223953 17655637

Stock-based

compensation expense 148099 148099

Net unrealized loss on

hedging instrument net

of income taxes of

$164605 319526 319526

Net income 1226123 1226123

Balances at December

31 2008 5000000 50000 15529783 3450076 319526 18710333

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

December 31

2008 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 1226123 2223953
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by used in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 547256 235681

Provision for bad debts 1143213 93980
Provision for obsolete inventory 180000 45000
Deferred income taxes 202298 64841

Loss on disposal of property and equipment 6064
Stock-based compensation 148099 118227

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable trade 973062 2516355
Accounts receivable other 98959 124025
Inventories 5139123 9818843
Income tax receivable 193386
Prepaid expenses

and other current assets 379 309834
Other assets 42920 85886
Accounts payable 4161418 728347
Accrued liabilities 337148 3590
Due to Zunicom Inc 186617

Deferred rent 18921 22824
Net cash provided by used in operating activities 604653 9139063

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment 851766 1446802
Proceeds from sale of equipment 1134

Escrow deposit 900000
Net cash used in investing activities 1750632 1446802

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net activity on line of credit 1518744 1740564
Payments on capital lease obligations 6609 18730
Payment on notes to Zunicom Inc 731250 _____________
Net cash provided by used in financing activities 780885 1759294

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 365094 12345159
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 691288 13036447

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 326194 691288

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Income taxes paid 1387650 1356108

Interest paid 1003195 1205657

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

F-8



UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Organization

Universal Power Group Inc UPG or the Company Texas corporation is distributor and supplier

of batteries and related power accessories to diverse range
of industries and provider of third-party

fulfillment and logistics services and value-added solutions The Companys primary logistics center is located

in Carrollton Texas and regional logistic centers are located in Oklahoma City Oklahoma Las Vegas Nevada

and Columbus Georgia The Companys customers are primarily located in the United States small portion

of the Companys sales are to customers located in the United Kingdom Australia Ireland China and Canada

Until December 20 2006 the Company was wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary of Zunicom Inc

Zunicom Texas corporation whose stock is traded on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol

ZNCM.OB On December 20 2006 the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission declared effective

registration statement filed by the Company registering the sale of 2000000 shares of its common stock by the

Company and 1000000 of the Companys common stock owned by Zunicom the IPO As result of the

IPO Zunicoms interest in the Company was reduced to 40% Zunicom no longer owns controlling interest in

UPG however as the largest shareholder Zunicom does have significant influence over UPG

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all unrestricted highly-liquid investments with original maturities of three months

or less to be cash and cash equivalents

Restricted Cash

The Company placed $900000 cash in an escrow account which it reported as restricted cash on its balance

sheet at December 31 2008 pursuant to the terms of an asset purchase and related escrow agreement The

escrowed funds were used to purchase all of the tangible and intangible assets related to line of outdoor hunting

and recreational products marketed under the brand name Monarch The acquisition closed in January 2009

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Company expects to collect The Company maintains

allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make

required payments Management considers the following factors when determining the collectibility of specific

customer accounts customer credit-worthiness past transaction history with the customer current economic

industry trends and changes in customer payment terms If the financial condition of the Companys customers

were to deteriorate adversely affecting their ability to make payments additional allowances would be required

Based on managements assessment the Company provides for estimated uncollectible amounts through charge

to earnings and credit to valuation allowance Balances that remain outstanding after the Company has used

reasonable collection efforts are written off through charge to the valuation allowance and credit to accounts

receivable

Inventories

Inventories consist of finished goods primarily of batteries and security products related to the Companys
third party fulfillment services and materials used in the assembly of batteries into packs All items are stated

at the lower of cost determined using the average cost method by specific item or market The Company

performs periodic evaluations based upon business trends to specifically identify obsolete slow moving and

non-salable inventory
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

The Company is significant supplier for Brinks Home Security Inc Brinks Home Security In order

to meet its obligations to Brinks Home Security the Company maintains certain required inventory levels at all

times Inventory held related to the Companys relationship with Brinks Home Security primarily security

products totaled approximately $13.2 million and $10.0 million respectively at December 31 2008 and 2007

Brinks Home Security is obligated to purchase from the Company any and all remaining inventory held by the

Company pursuant to an agreement with Brinks Home Security including inventory in transit and reimburse

the Company for any applicable cancellation fees to the manufacturer upon early termination of the relationship

Property and Eguiment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less applicable depreciation and amortization Depreciation and

amortization of property and equipment is provided for using the straight-line method over the estimated useful

lives of the assets ranging from three to ten years Leasehold improvements are amortized on straight-line basis

over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the related asset Equipment leased under capital

leases is amortized over the service life of the related asset or the term of the lease whichever is shorter

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and liability approach to accounting and reporting for income taxes Deferred

income tax assets and liabilities are computed annually for differences between the financial and tax basis of assets

and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future based on enacted tax laws and rates

applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income Valuation allowances are

established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized Income tax expense

or benefit is the tax payable or refundable for the period plus or minus the change during the period in deferred tax

assets and liabilities

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed when events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value

may not be recoverable If an impairment indicator exists the Company compares the future undiscounted cash

flows of such assets to their carrying value If the carrying value exceeds the future undiscounted cash flows the

assets are written down to their fair value using discounted cash flows The Companys management has

evaluated its long-lived assets and has not identified any impairment as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Deferred Rent

The Companys operating lease for its primary office and warehouse space contains free rent period and

contains predetermined fixed increases of the minimum rental rate during the initial lease term For this lease the

Company recognizes rental expense on straight-line basis over the minimum lease term and records the

difference between the amounts charged to expense and the rent paid as deferred rent In addition the landlord

provided certain allowances for leasehold improvements on this office and warehouse
space

which have been

recorded as deferred rent and leasehold improvements The deferred rent will be amortized as an offset to rent

expense over the remaining term of the related lease

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB No 104 when

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred the price is fixed and determinable and

collectibility is reasonably assured
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

The Company is distributor who purchases both finished goods and components from domestic and

international suppliers The Company adds value to products and components by packaging them in customer

specified kits or tailor made units that are convenient for the customer to order and ship Additionally the

Company has several customers that require specific battery pack assemblies The Company obtains batteries

and components and reconfigures finished goods based upon customer specifications The Company refers to

this
process as battery pack assemblies The Company recognizes sales of finished goods at the time the

customer takes title to the product

The Company sells products to several customers in bulk quantities The Company obtains the order from

the customer and
arranges

for the delivery of the product directly from our vendor to the customer to reduce

freight costs and wear and tear on the product from excessive handling The Company refers to these

transactions as drop shipments because the product is shipped directly from its vendor to its customer The

Company also has an inventory fulfillment agreement with Brinks Home Security The Company purchases

handles assembles and delivers security and installation components to Brinks Home Security and to its

authorized dealers Revenues from drop shipment transactions and pursuant to the Brinks Home Security

agreement are recognized on gross basis at the time the customer takes title to the product based on an analysis

of the criteria defined in Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 99-19 for gross revenue reporting Specifically

the Company is the primary obligor ii the Company has general and physical loss inventory risk iiithe

Company has credit risk iv in most cases the Company has discretion in supplier selection and product

specifications and the Company has reasonable latitude within economic constraints to negotiate prices and

terms with its customers

Post Shipment Obligations

The Company offers its customers limited warranty for replacement of finished goods that do not function

properly Generally the limited warranty period is for one year The most common types of warranty claims are

batteries that leak or batteries that do not provide the voltage they are intended to supply The Companys written

warranty is limited to the replacement of the product purchased and does not cover the product the battery is

intended to power The Companys replacement rate is insignificant and is therefore recorded when the warranty

expense is incurred If the Company determines that shipment of product had manufacturing defect the

Company has recourse with the manufacturer to recover the replacement costs incurred The costs of isolated or

individual instances of defects are borne by the Company At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company has

warranty reserve of approximately $10000

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred Advertising expense totaled approximately

$281000 and $209000 for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs incurred for the receipt of inventory are charged to cost of sales in the

accompanying statements of income

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income applicable to common shareholders

by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each year
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Diluted earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of

common shares and common stock equivalents outstanding for the year The Companys common stock

equivalents include all dilutive common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options and warrants

For the year ended December 31 2008 the dilutive effects of 1336114 stock options and 300000 warrants

are excluded from the calculation of diluted net income per share as they are antidilutive For the
year

ended

December 31 2007 the dilutive effects of 40000 stock options are included in the diluted net income per share

calculation and 1269364 stock options and 300000 warrants are excluded from the calculation of diluted net

income per share as they are antidilutive

Fair Value of Financial Information

The Company calculates the fair value of its assets and liabilities which qualify as financial instruments

under this statement and includes this additional information in the notes to the financial statements when the fair

value is different than carrying value of these financial instruments The estimated fair value of cash equivalents

accounts receivable prepaid expenses other current assets line-of-credit accounts payable and accrued

liabilities approximate their carrying amounts due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments The

estimated fair value of capital lease obligations approximates the carrying amounts since they bear market rates

of interest None of these instruments are held for trading purposes Additionally the Company has cash flow

hedge related to the line of credit See disclosures regarding the fair value of the cash flow hedge in Note

Fair Value Measurements

Stock-Based Compensation and Restricted Stock

The Company accounts for employee stock-based compensation in accordance with SFAS No 123R Share-

Based Payment SFAS No 123R Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the statements of income

during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 includes compensation expense for fully vested stock options

and the amortization of partially vested stock-based payment awards SFAS No 123R requires forfeitures to be

estimated at the time of grant and revised if necessary
in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those

estimates

The Company accounts for its restricted stock grant in accordance with EITF Issue No 00-12 Accounting by

an Investor for Stock-Based Compensation Granted to Employees of an Equity Method Investee and FASB 123R

Share-Based Payment

Accounting for Non-Employee Stock Options and Warrants

The Company applies EITF No 96-18 Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than

Employees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services EITF 96-18 with respect to

options and warrants issued to non-employees EITF 96-18 requires the use of option valuation models to measure

the fair value of the options and warrants at the measurement date

Accounting for Derivative Activities

The Company uses an interest rate swap agreement see Note to limit exposure to changes in interest rates

The interest rate swap is derivative financial instrument which the Company accounts for pursuant to Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

SFAS No 133 SFAS No 133 establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and

requires that all derivatives be measured at fair value and recognized as either assets or liabilities on the balance

sheet Changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized in other comprehensive income

component of shareholders equity or net income depending on whether the derivative is being used to hedge
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

changes in cash flows or fair value The Company has determined that changes in value of its interest rate swap

should be accounted for as cash flow hedge and recorded as other comprehensive income loss in shareholders

equity if the cash flow hedge is effective or through the statement of income if ineffective

Use ofEstimates and Assumptions

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used

Recent ccountin Pronouncements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS No 161 SFAS No 161 requires enhanced

disclosures about an entitys derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial

reporting SFAS No 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning

after November 15 2008 with early application encouraged SFAS No 161 encourages but does not require

comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption Management is currently evaluating the effects of

SFAS No 161 but the standard is not expected to have material impact on the Companys financial statements

On January 2008 the Company adopted SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS No 157
which defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting

principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements SFAS No 157 does not require any new fair

value measurements but provides guidance on how to measure fair value by providing fair value hierarchy used to

classifi the source of the information On December 14 2007 the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-b which would delay

the effective date of SFAS No 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities except those that are

recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis at least annually This

proposed FSP partially defers the effective date of SFAS No 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008
and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of this FSP The adoption of SFAS No 157

for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities is not expected to have material impact on the Companys
financial position results of operations or cash flows

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R Business Combinations SFAS 141R which

replaces SFAS 141 The provisions of SFAS No 141R are similarto those of SFAS No 141 however SFAS

No 14 1R requires companies to record most identifiable assets liabilities noncontrolling interests and goodwill

acquired in business combination at full fair value SFAS No 14 1R also requires companies to record fair

value estimates of contingent consideration and certain other potential liabilities during the original purchase price

allocation and to expense acquisition costs as incurred This statement applies to all business combinations

including combinations by contract alone Further under SFAS No 14 1R all business combinations will be

accounted for by applying the acquisition method SFAS No 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning on or

after December 15 2008 The Company will apply the provisions of SFAS No 141R to business combinations

after December 31 2008

ReclassifIcations

Certain 2007 amounts have been reclassified to conform to 2008 presentation
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE INVENTORIES

Inventories at December 31 2008 and 2007 consist of the following

December 31

2008 2007

Battery and related inventory 21256255 20330701

Security related inventory 13178947 10220444

Electronic components inventory 3227648 1988012

Inventory obsolescence reserve 358350 193780

37304500 32345377

NOTE LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has $30 million line of credit with Compass Bank which matures on July 52012 The facility

bears interest at LIBOR Index Rate plus sliding range from 1.25% to 2.50% based on quarterly covenant

performance At December 31 2008 that rate was 2.58% The line of credit is due on demand and is secured by

accounts receivable inventories and equipment The lines availability is based on borrowing formula which

allows for borrowings equal to 85% of UPGs eligible accounts receivable and percentage of eligible inventory In

addition the Company must maintain certain financial covenants including ratios on funded debt to EBITDA as

well as fixed charge ratio At December 31 2008 approximately $14.4 million was outstanding under the line of

credit and approximately $7 million remained available for borrowings under the line of credit based on the

borrowing formula

As of December 31 2008 the Company was in default of the loan agreement with Compass Bank as result of

its failure to satisfy certain financial and non-financial covenants The Company also expects that it will be in

default for the quarter ending March 31 2009 as result of its failure to satisfy certain financial covenants This

latter failure is attributable to the fact that the Company will incur charges of approximately $2.6 million in the first

quarter of 2009 relating to the separation agreements with its former chief executive officer and independent

sourcing agent that it entered into in that period see Note Compass Bank has waived the events of default that

existed at December 31 2008 and those that the Company believes exist with respect to the quarter ended March 31

2009 In addition Compass Bank intends to modify the relevant covenants such that the Company may be in

compliance commencing with the quarter ending June 30 2009

Interest Rate Sway

In June 2008 the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement which locks-in fixed rate of 5.85%

on the first $6.0 million outstanding under the line of credit thus swapping the fixed rate for the current variable rate

as calculated under the original loan agreements through its maturity date of July 2012 The notional amount of

the swap is $6.0 million and the term runs concurrent with the line of credit The interest rate swap is accounted for

as an effective cash flow hedge and the unrealized gains or losses related to the change in fair value are recorded in

accumulated other comprehensive income loss The Company has recorded the fair value of the interest rate swap

liability in the amount of $484131 at December 31 2008 The unrealized loss net of income taxes totaling

$164605 of $319526 has been recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31 2008

NOTE NOTES PAYABLE TO ZUNICOM INC

The Company has two notes payable with an aggregate original principal amount of $5.85 million issued to

its former parent Zunicom The notes were issued in December 2006 immediately before the IPO One note in

the original principal amount of $3 million evidences final dividend declared by the Company The second

note in the original principal amount of $2.85 million represents the value of Zunicoms net operating losses

that the Company used to offset its taxable income in the years prior to the IPO The notes are unsecured

obligations maturing June 20 2012 The notes bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum payable quarterly in
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE NOTES PAYABLE TO ZUNICOM INC CONTINUED

arrears the principal amount is being repaid in 16 equal quarterly installments of $365625 Payment on these

notes began in September 2008 The aggregate outstanding principal balance of the notes at December 31 2008

was $5.1 million

Payments due to Zunicom at December 31 2008 are as follows

2009 1462500

2010 1462500
2011 1462500

2012 731250

Total 5118750
Less current portion 1462500
Non-current portion 3656250

During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company paid interest totaling $346000 and

$351000 respectively to Zunicom with respect to these notes

NOTE INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 2008 and 2007 consist of the following

December31

2008 2007

Deferred tax assets

Inventory obsolescence 121839 65885
Allowance for doubtful accounts 388692 43986

Accrued liabilities 93534
Interest rate swap 164605

Severance compensation 49975

Stock-based compensation 830062 779709

Current deferred tax asset 1555173 983114

Non-current deferred tax liability 230611 24455

The non-current deferred tax liability arises from the different useful lives and depreciation methods for

depreciating assets for income tax purposes and financial reporting purposes

The Companys provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 is comprised

as follows

2008 2007

Current federal income tax expense 1051619 1299504

Current state income tax expense benefit 201669 173359
Deferred income tax expense benefit 202298 64841

Provision for income taxes 1050990 1190986
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UNIVERSAL POWER GROUP INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE INCOME TAXES CONTINUED

The Companys income tax expense
for the

years
ended December 31 2008 and 2007 differed from the

statutory federal rate of 34 percent as follows

2008 2007

Statutory rate applied to income before income taxes 774221 1161080

Amounts not deductible for income tax purposes 91690 83752

State income taxes net of federal income tax effect 53316 53846

Change in prior year state income tax estimate 120887

Other 10876

Income tax expense 1050990 1190986

NOTE STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock options

2006 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan

In December 2006 the Company adopted and its shareholders approved and ratified the 2006 Stock Option

Plan the Plan the
purpose

of which is to attract and retain the personnel necessary for the Companys
success The Plan gives the board of directors the Board the ability to provide incentives through grants of

stock options restricted stock awards and other types of equity-based incentive compensation awards to the

Companys key employees consultants and directors other than directors that are not compensated for their time

by the Company or receive only directors fee The Plan will be administered by the compensation committee

of the board of directors Except as may otherwise be provided in the Plan the Boards compensation committee

the Compensation Committee will have complete authority and discretion to determine the terms of awards

The Plan authorizes the granting of options including options that satisfy the requirements of Section 422 of

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended The Compensation Committee will determine the period of

time during which stock option may be exercised as well as any vesting schedule except that no stock option

may be exercised more than 10 years after its date of grant The exercise price for shares of the Companys

common stock covered by an incentive stock option cannot be less than the fair market value of the Companys
common stock on the date of grant provided that that exercise of an incentive stock option granted to an eligible

employee that owns more than 10% of the voting power of all classes of the Companys capital stock must be at

least 110% of the fair market value of the Companys common stock on the date of grant

The Plan also authorizes the grant of restricted stock awards on terms and conditions established by the

Compensation Committee The terms and conditions will include the designation of restriction period during

which the shares are not transferable and are subject to forfeiture

The Board may terminate the Plan without shareholder approval or ratification at any time Unless sooner

terminated the Plan will terminate in December 2016 The Board may also amend the Plan provided that no

amendment will be effective without approval of the Companys shareholders if shareholder approval is required to

satisfy any applicable statutory or regulatory requirements

In June 2007 the Companys shareholders approved an additional 250000 common shares issuable under

the Plan In August 2008 the Companys shareholders approved an additional 500000 common shares issuable

under the Plan total of 2000000 shares of the Companys common stock representing 40% of the total

number of shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2008 are reserved for issuance under the Plan If an

award expires or terminates unexercised or is forfeited to the Company or shares covered by an award are used

to fully or partially pay the exercise price of an option granted under the Plan or shares are retained by the

Company to satisfy tax withholding obligations in connection with an option exercise or the vesting of another
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award those shares will become available for further awards under the Plan

At December 31 2008 common shares reserved for future issuance include 2000000 shares issuable under the

Plan as well as 20000 shares issuable outside the Plan and 300000 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding

warrants described below At December 31 2008 there are 1336114 options outstanding under the Plan and

663886 options are available for future grants

Valuation Assumptions

The fair values of option awards granted under the Plan were estimated at the grant date using Black

Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions for the fiscal years ended December 31 2008 and

2007

0.00% 0.00%

3.87% 4.57% 4.68%

17.00% 17.00% -18.00%

__________________
0.67

The Company has elected to use the calculated value method to estimate expected volatility in 2008 and 2007

As the stock of the Company became publicly traded in December 2006 and has traded for relatively short period

time it is not practicable for management to estimate the expected volatility of share price or peer company price

because there is not sufficient historical information about volatility The Company used historical volatility of the

Dow Jones Small Cap Non-Durable Household Companies which is representative of the Companys size and

industry The Company has used the historical closing values of that index to estimate volatility which was

calculated at 17% The expected term considers the contractual term of the option as well as expectations for

exercise and forfeiture behavior The risk-free interest rate is based on the rates in effect on the grant date for U.S

Treasury instruments with maturities matching the relevant expected term of the award

Stock Incentive Plan Summary

Stock option activity under the Plan for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 was as follows

Options outstanding at January 2007

Granted

Exercised

Canceled forfeited or expired

Options outstanding at December 31 2007

Granted

Exercised

Canceled forfeited or expired

Options outstanding at December 31 2008
_________________

Weighted average assumptions used

Expected dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate

Expected volatility

Expected life in years

Weighted average grant date fair value

2008 2007

0.92

Number of Shares

1187500

102500

636

Weighted Average

Exercise Price

7.00

6.02

1289364

56886

10136

7.00

6.92

3.85

7.00

6.791336114
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Stock Options Outstanding and Exercisable

The following summarizes stock options outstanding under our 2006 Stock Option Plan at December 31 2008

Options Outstanding and Exercisable

Weighted Average

Number of Remaining

Options Contractual Life

Exercise Prices Outstanding in years

3.81 56250 9.62

4.48 40000 7.97

7.00 1239864 7.97

3.81 -7.00 1336114 8.04

At December 31 2008 the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable was $0

At December 31 2008 all outstanding options under the Plan were fully vested with no remaining

unrecognized compensation expense

Non-Employee Stock Options

On March 21 2007 the Company issued stock options to non-employees to purchase 20000 shares of the

Companys common stock at an exercise price of $7.00 per share vesting over the next three years
and expiring

December 19 2016 These stock options were valued at approximately $6300 using the Black-Scholes model and

remain outstanding as of December 31 2008

Warrants

In connection with the IPO the Company issued warrants to the underwriters to purchase 300000 shares of the

Companys common stock at an exercise price of$ 8.40 per share These warrants are exercisable at any time on or

after December 20 2008 and on or before December 19 2011 and were valued at approximately $127000 using the

Black-Scholes model for valuation All warrants remain outstanding as of December 31 2008

Restricted Stock

On June 25 2007 Zunicom issued 645133 shares of restricted stock to certain employees of UPG for past and

future services The fair value of the shares at the issue date was approximately $377000 The Company is

amortizing the fair value as compensation expense over the 48 month vesting period in accordance with EITF Issue

No.00-12 Accounting by an Investor for Stock-Based Compensation Granted to Employees of an Equity Method

Investee and FASB 123R Share-Based Payment Approximately $94250 and $47000 of compensation

expense was recorded during 2008 and 2007 respectively

NOTE FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

As discussed in Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies the Company adopted SFAS No 157

on January 2008 which among other things requires enhanced disclosures about assets and liabilities measured at

fair value on recurring basis The adoption of SFAS No 157 was limited to financial assets and liabilities which

primarily relates to the Companys derivative contract

SFAS No 157 includes fair value hierarchy that is intended to increase consistency and comparability in fair

value measurements and related disclosures The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that

are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable Observable inputs reflect assumptions
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market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability based on market data obtained from independent

sources while unobservable inputs reflect reporting entitys pricing based upon their own market assumptions

The fair value hierarchy consists of the following three levels

Level Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in an active market quoted prices for

identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active inputs other than quoted prices that are

observable and market-corroborated inputs which are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data

Level Inputs are derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or value

drivers are unobservable

The following table represents liabilities the Company has measured at fair value as of December 31 2008 and

the basis for that measurement

Total Quoted Prices Significant

Fair Value in Active Other Significant

Measurement Markets for Observable Unobservable

December 31 Identical Asset Inputs Inputs

2008 Level Level Level

Derivative liabilities 484131 484131

The fair market value of the interest rate swap is measured using the discounted present value of the forecasted one

month LIBOR an observable input

NOTE CREDIT CONCENTRATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily

of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable

Cash cash equivalents and restricted cash are at risk to the extent that they exceed Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation insured amounts of $250000 per institution At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had

cash and restricted cash accounts in excess of these limits

In the normal course of business the Company extends unsecured credit to virtually all of its customers

Because of the credit risk involved management has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts which reflects

its estimate of amounts which may become uncollectible In the event of complete non-performance by the

Companys customers the maximum exposure to the Company is the outstanding accounts receivable balance at

the date of non-performance

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had receivables due from Brinks Home Security who

comprised approximately 28% and 29% respectively of total trade receivables During the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 Brinks Home Security accounted for 35% and 41% respectively of net sales

The loss of Brinks Home Security would materially decrease the Companys net sales

significant portion of the Companys inventory purchases are from two suppliers representing 38% and

36% for the year ended December 31 2008 42% and 34% for the year ended December 31 2007 The Company
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purchased approximately 51% and 50% respectively of its product through domestic sources with the remainder

purchased from international sources predominately China for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

The majority of the Companys international purchases were coordinated through an independent sourcing agent

In March 2009 in an effort to improve efficiencies within its sourcing channels the Company entered into an

agreement with its primary independent sourcing agent canceling its relationship with that agent Under the

agreement the Company will pay its former sourcing agent total of $2.565 million including amounts owed

with respect to purchases prior to the cancellation of the relationship over three-year period The sourcing

agent assigned to the Company all of his North American distribution rights on products manufactured by certain

factories including the Companys primary battery supplier and agreed to three-year non-compete covenant

The Company does not believe that the cancellation of this relationship will impact its ability to source goods

from its suppliers

NOTE COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litation

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business

Management does not believe that the outcome of these matters will have material adverse effect on the

Companys financial position operating results or cash flows However there can be no assurance that such

legal proceedings will not have material impact

Oyeratin Leases

The Company leases certain office and warehouse facilities and various vehicles and equipment under non-

cancelable operating leases On February 2002 the Company entered into lease for warehouse facility

This lease was amended in 2003 and again in November 2006 The amendment expanded the Companys

warehouse facilities by approximately 67000 square feet to total of approximately 216000 square feet The

amended lease extends the Companys terms through March 31 2013 with monthly base payments beginning

January 2007 totaling approximately $38800 for 2007 $41900 for 2008 and 2009 $46400 for 2010 through

2012 and $0 zero for the final three months January 2013 through March 31 2013 The Company entered

into warehouse facility lease effective August 2007 with monthly payments of approximately $6000 through

July 31 2010 On April 30 2008 the Company entered into new lease agreement for 21427 square feet of

retail and warehouse space in Las Vegas Nevada

The Company is leasing this space
for approximately $13600 per month beginning September 2008 through

August 31 2011 Monthly base payments for the first two months was $0 for the next ten months is $13607 for

the second year is $14151 and for the third year is $14718 Vehicle and equipment leases mature on various

dates through 2013 Minimum future payments on all leases for real and personal property as of December 31

2008 are as follows

Years ending

December 31

2009 832681

2010 901871

2011 779546

2012 641022

2013 7770

Thereafter 3191072

Rent expense for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 totaled approximately $943000 and

$818000 respectively
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Employment Agreements and Arrangements

In December 2006 the Company entered into three-year employment contract with Randy Hardin under which

he served as the Companys president and chief executive officer Under that agreement the Company agreed to

pay Hardin in addition to benefits generally available to all other executives of the company base salary plus an

annual bonus equal to 10% of its audited pre-tax net income as adjusted provided that its pre-tax net income

exceeded targeted amount established by the Board The employment agreement also provided for grant of

options to acquire 475000 shares of the Companys common stock at the IPO price $7.00 per share and the use of

company-leased vehicle For 2008 Hardins base salary was $242000 and his bonus compensation was $178707

On January 21 2009 the Company entered into Separation Agreement with Hardin terminating his

employment agreement Under the Separation Agreement the Company agreed to continue to pay Hardin his annual

base salary and to reimburse him for the costs of his healthcare insurance coverage through January 21 2011 the

Restricted Period to the same extent it paid for such insurance immediately prior to the termination of his

employment agreement In consideration therefore Hardin agreed that he will not during the Restricted Period

compete with the Company in any of its lines of business including the battery and related power accessory supply

and distribution business and its third party logistics services business ii solicit or hire any of its employees or

iiiencourage any person or entity that has an existing business relationship with the Company to curtail or cancel

its relationship with the Company In addition Hardin agreed not to disclose any of its confidential or proprietary

information The total cost under the Separation Agreement to the Company approximately $513000 will be

recorded as an expense in the first quarter of 2009

In December 2006 the Company entered into three-year employment contract with Ian Edmonds under which

he serves as the Companys executive vice-president and chief operating officer Under the agreement Edmonds

receives in addition to benefits generally available to all other employees an annual salary an annual bonus based

on company performance and his individual performance that is completely at the discretion of the Board an initial

grant of options to acquire 356250 shares of its common stock and company leased vehicle For 2008 Edmonds

base salary was $214500 and his bonus was $58000

In December 2006 the Company entered into three-year employment contract with Mimi Tan under which

she serves as the Companys senior vice-president of business development and marketing and corporate secretary

Under the agreement Tan receives in addition to benefits generally available to all other employees an annual

salary and an annual bonus based on company performance and her individual performance that is completely at the

discretion of the Board In 2008 Tans base salary was $166113 and her bonus was $46000

NOTE EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company established and continues to maintain 401k Plan intended to qualifi under sections 401a
and 401k of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended All employees who are at least 18 years of

age

are eligible to participate in the plan There is no minimum service requirement to participate in the plan Under

the plan an eligible employee can elect to defer from 1% to 85% of his salary The Company may at its sole

discretion contribute and allocate to plan participants account percentage of the plan participants contribution

There were no Company contributions for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

NOTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2009 the Company completed the acquisition of line of outdoor hunting and recreational products

including all tangible and intangible assets relating thereto marketed under the brand name Monarch The

purchase price was $1 million
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In January 2009 Randy Hardin the Companys chief executive officer resigned Hardin will receive aggregate

payments of approximately $513000 over two-year period which includes health insurance costs over that period

Ian Edmonds the Companys executive vice president and chief operating officer was appointed chief executive

officer on an interim basis

In March 2009 in an effort to improve efficiencies within its sourcing channels the Company entered into an

agreement with its primary independent sourcing agent canceling its relationship with that agent Under the

agreement the Company will pay its former sourcing agent total of $2.5 65 million including amounts owed with

respect to purchases prior to the cancellation of the relationship over three-year period The sourcing agent

assigned to the Company all of his North American distribution rights on products manufactured by certain

factories including the Companys primary battery supplier and agreed to three-year non-compete covenant
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